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OUR MISSION

We have highlighted the mission of “invest for a better

life”, integrated the success of the culture of our management
team into current operations, and adhered to the “customer-first, > e
all wins, harmony-oriented, environmental friendly, result driven”

philosophy, thus promoting sustainable corporate development. This is
proved that we proactively responded to stakeholders’ concerns and, in
particular, persisted with repaying investors’ trust with increasing returns
and looking for good opportunities. We will expand our business to
other sectors that would have good opportunities. We ensure a
steady supply of quality products and considerate services to our
customers, kept our promise to employees and paid heed to
their concerns, created a home-alike working environment
and a broad development platform, and proactively
engaged in social welfare in return for the support
and understanding of all walks of life.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
TRMES

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of China
Sinostar Group Company Limited (the “Company”) and all
of its subsidiaries (the “Group”), | am pleased to present the
Group’s annual report for the year ended 31 March 2018 to the

Shareholders.

It has been the Group's business strategy to diversify its business
into different sectors and to strengthen and expand its revenue
streams. The Group is committed to generate sustainable returns
to our shareholders and enhance the shareholders’ value. The
management of the Group formulates various business strategies
in order to meet the development of the Group. Also, we
monitor the markets closely and take immediate and appropriate
actions when needed.

During the financial year of 2018, the operating environment
remained difficult and the overall market conditions were full of
uncertainties. The Group has experienced changes and troughs
in the business of trading of electronic products in the United
States (“US") market, the business of sales and installation of
elevators as well as the business of properties investment in
the China market. We conducted comprehensive review on our
business models and made strategic moves during the reporting
year.

In respect of the business of trading of electronic products,
the Group has strengthen the business relationship with
the existing customers in the US market and explored new
business opportunities in the United Kingdom (“UK") market.
These acts have minimized the adverse effect brought by the
bankruptcy of one of our major customers during the financial
year of 2018. The sales was adsorbed by other customers and
the turnover of the business of trading of electronic products
increased from HK$457,858,000 for the year ended 31 March
2017 to HK$512,115,000 for the year ended 31 March 2018,
representing an increase of 12%. Although the Group recorded
segment loss at the amount of HK$1,729,000 for the year ended
31 March 2018, the financial performance on the business of
trading of electronic products remained healthy.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFRERES

On the another hand, the properties investment market in
the Northen China experienced an unexpected slow growth
throughout the year ended 31 March 2018. Having considered
the degree of uncertainty towards the market could not be
determined and the continued finance costs brought to the
Group, the Group decided to shift its focus from the properties
investment business to the properties development business in
the People’s Republic of China (“PRC").
period, the Group entered into a disposal agreement to dispose

During the reporting

of its entire interests in Tong Sheng Yuan Holdings Limited
and its subsidiaries (“TSY Group”) that were engaged in the
business of the sales and installation of elevators and properties
investment. The disposal lowered the overall finance costs of
the Group and provided flexibility to the Group for potential
business opportunities.

In addition, the Group also entered into an acquisition
agreement during the year ended 31 March 2018 to expand
With the

extensive experience and knowledge from the management of

its business in the properties development sector.

the Group and the favourable market conditions in the PRC, the
Board is optimistic in the industry of properties development and
will put more attention and resources in this business sector in

the coming years.

Looking forward, in light of the uncertainties towards the global
economy, the Group will step up its resources in strengthening
and expanding its existing business sectors and will also actively
seek for new strategic investment opportunities. The Board is
in confidence to embrace the challenges and make a return to
profitability.

Lastly, | would like to thank my fellow Directors, senior
management and all our staff for their contribution and support
during the year. | would also like to thank all our Shareholders,
suppliers, business partners and customers, whose supports have
contributed to our success in the past year.

By the order of the Board
Wang Jing

Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B WD T

DISPOSAL OF THE TONG SHENG YUAN
HOLDINGS LIMITED

On 26 September 2017, the Company entered into a disposal
agreement with an independent third party to (i) transfer the
entire equity interest in Tong Sheng Yuan Holdings Limited
("TSY", together with its subsidiaries, the “TSY Group”), an
indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company at the total
consideration of RMB125,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$146.46 million) (the “Disposal”) and (ii) assign a payable
balance of HK$38.7 million from the Group companies to the
independent third party, details of which were disclosed in the
announcements of the Company both dated 26 September 2017
and the circular of the Company dated 30 November 2017. TSY
Group was engaged in the business of the sales and installation
of elevators and properties investment. The disposal agreement
was entered into after having considered the continuous
decrease in the fair value of the properties held by TSY Group
over the past years and the liabilities and finance costs of TSY
Group. The Disposal completed in September 2017 and the
financial position of the Group has been gradually improved.

In accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 5,
the sales and installation of elevators and part of the properties
investment business is now classified as Discontinued Operations.
This management discussion and analysis together with the
financial results will focus on the remaining businesses within
the Group after the Disposal, classified here as Continuing
Operations.

The Continuing Operations comprise of electronic products

business, hydroelectric power business, properties investment,
properties development and securities trading.

6 China Sinostar Group Company Limited Annual Report 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB wER D T

BUSINESS REVIEW

Driven by the uncertainties towards the markets in the US and
Europe and the slow economic growth in the Northern China,
the Company has been taken a prudery way to monitor and
revisit the business model of the Group during the reporting
period.

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the total turnover of the
Group was HK$518,038,000, representing a 12% increase from
HK$462,025,000 as compared to the corresponding period
in 2017. An increase of HK$32,063,000 of the administrative
expenses recorded for the year ended 31 March 2018 was mainly
due to the increased overheads, legal and professional cost and
the office rental cost of the Group. Furthermore, the Group
recorded bad debts written off at the amount of HK$24,989,000
due to the accounts receivable exposure from Toys R Us after
taking into consideration of its voluntary petition filing for
relief under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy in September 2017
and liquidation filing in April 2018. As such, resulted in the
recording of other loss at the amount of HK$18,875,000 for
the year ended 31 March 2018 as compared to other loss at the
amount of HK$3,012,000 for the year ended 31 March 2017.

In addition, finance costs decreased from HK$12,248,000 for the
year ended 31 March 2017 to HK$6,905,000 for the year ended
31 March 2018 as a result of the conversion of convertible
bonds during the year and the elimination of finance costs
incurred by TSY Group after the Disposal.

As a result, the loss for the year ended 31 March 2018 was
HK$26,721,000, representing a decrease of 31% as compared to
the loss of HK$39,006,000 for the year ended 31 March 2017.

E 3 4E1) -
EXBERBNTSTHAREREDELFIER
BENTET  ARRCERERYEFRIAE
ERHmEHENEBER -

BHEZZ-\F-A=+—HIEFE TEEHE
& R518,038,0008 T W-_T—tFREM
462,025,000 TN T12% - HE-FE—N\F=
A=+—BIEFEHE1THMXENM32,063,000
BTEEHRNAERENNRAE  EERFERRK
R AERSEAMB o o REBLH R =T
—tFENARBENEERBRBERERER -
—N\FHASEHREGEIRMIE24,989,000
IT - JThF R Toys R UsHyEURGRIB R T3 -
o RBEE-Z—NEFZA=Z+—HILFE  Hit
Ei18 /318,875,000 L MEZE_T—+tF=A
=+t RALEFENHEAMEIER3,012,00087T °

AN ARHEEFETKERFRNERITRRE
HARHEERBREEBEENYBRKAR - B
RABRHEE-_Z—+tFZA=Z1+—BLEFEHN
12,248,000 TR EZHEZE-_Z—\F=ZA=1+—
B 1 F/E /96,905,000 T °

Hit» HE-_Z—-N\F=A=+—HILFENEE

/326,721,000 T BEHE _T—+tE=ZA=+
— B IFFEREE39,006,000/8 T T31% °

ZER-N\EEHR PREELEEARAAF 7



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEWED

Electronic Products Business

The electronic products business maintained a steady growth
over the past years. The turnover for the year ended 31 March
2018 was HK$512,115,000, representing an increase of 12%
as compared to HK$457,858,000 for the year ended 31 March
2017. The increase in turnover was mainly due to the increase
in sales volume from two major customers which benefit from
the increasing popularity in on-line shopping in the US and
increasing demands of various products in the UK. However, due
to the written off of receivables from Toys R Us, the increasing
operating cost and administrative cost, segment loss of
HK$1,729,000 for the year ended 31 March 2018 was resulted,
as compared to a segment profit of HK$8,313,000 for the year
ended 31 March 2017.

With reference to the announcement of the Company dated 29
September 2017, Toys R Us, being one of the top 5 customers
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2017, filed for
bankruptcy protection in September 2017 and converted to
liquidation in April 2018. Having considered the receivables
exposure from Toys R Us, the Group written off the receivables
from Toys R Us at the amount of HK$24,989,000 for the year
ended 31 March 2018. The Group will closely monitor the overall
market and take appropriate actions to minimize the negative

impact on us.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB wER D T

Hydroelectric Power Business

Since 2016, the Group has reallocated and devoted resources in
the development of renewable and clean energy business. The
Group acquired two hydroelectric power stations in the Northern
China in 2016 and 2017 and those hydroelectric power stations
are connected to the national power grid. Throughout the
past two financial years, the turnover and the segment profit
generated from the hydroelectric power business was gradually
increased. The turnover increased from HK$4,167,000 for the
year ended 31 March 2017 to HK$5,185,000 for the year ended
31 March 2018 while the segment profit also increased from
HK$419,000 for the year ended 31 March 2017 to HK$630,000
for the year ended 31 March 2018. The increase in revenue
as well as profit were mainly attributable to the steady and
increasing demand for electricity and the effective cost control
over the year. Besides, it is expected that the PRC government
will put more attention and effort to encourage the development
in clean and sustainable energy in the near future. The Board is
confident that the continuing investment in the development of
renewable and clean energy business will benefit the Group in
the long run.

Properties Investment

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group expanded
its business in properties investment and acquired several
leasing rights of several parcels of land in the Northern China.
Administrative cost, legal cost and construction cost were
incurred for the startup of the properties investment business
and nil turnover and a segment loss was recorded for the year
ended 31 March 2017.

During the year, agreements in relation to the leasing of several
parcels of land were entered between the Group and the
tenants. The properties investment business has become more
mature and gradually move onto the right track. As a result, the
turnover increased from nil for the year ended 31 March 2017
to the amount of HK$738,000 for the year ended 31 March
2018 and the segment loss decreased from the amount of
HK$5,034,000 for the year ended 31 March 2017 to the amount
of HK$2,471,000 for the year ended 31 March 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEWED

Properties Development Business

During the year, the Group entered into an acquisition
agreement to acquire 100% equity interest of Benxi Tongsheng
Property Development Limited (the “Acquisition”). The Company,
through the Acquisition, indirectly acquires the land use right
of a parcel of land located at Xiguan Village, Huanren County,
Benxi, Liaoning Province with a floor area of 46,242.6 sq.m. and
construction area of 80,462 sq.m. for commercial and residential
use and such land use right is currently held by Benxi Tongsheng
Property Development Limited.

Having considered the supply of land in Xiguan Village,
Huanren County, Benxi, Liaoning Province is limited, the Board
is optimistic on the selling prospect and expected that the
Acquisition will improve the business structure of the Group and
enhance return to the Company and the Shareholders.

In addition, it is expected that it will have more favorable
policies from the PRC government to promote the stable and
healthy development of the properties markets in the PRC, the
management of the Company is optimistic on the properties
development business and will seek for potential opportunities in
the near future and achieve better results for the Group.

PROSPECT

Looking forward, it is believed that the forthcoming year remains
challenging all over the markets, especially on the rising threat
from the global trade war caused by the government policy
of the US. However, leveraging on the extensive experience
and network of the management of the Group, the Group will
adhere to its strategy of focusing on the business in properties
development as well as the clean energy development in the PRC
and other thriving regions. Furthermore, the Group will continue
to seek for possible investment opportunities in different
industries and to expand the revenue streams of the Group in
order to generate better results and prospect for the Group.

10  China Sinostar Group Company Limited Annual Report 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB wER D T

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 March 2018, bank balances and cash has increased to
HK$50,930,000 as compared to HK$34,442,000 as at 31 March
2017. As at 31 March 2018, gearing ratio calculated as 0.01 (31
March 2017: 0.32, excluding convertible bonds). The decrease
of the Group’s gearing ratio represents the decrease of the debt
portion at the year end.

The management utilized the gearing platform in order to
further develop its business. The current ratio of the Group is
lower than last year, it increased from 1.23 as at 31 March 2017
to 3.91 as at 31 March 2018. The current ratio improved in the
current year and keeps at a healthy level.

Financing and Capital Structure

The total borrowing of the Group as at 31 March 2018 and 31
March 2017 was HK$4,900,000 and HK$99,500,000 respectively,
and such decrease was attributable to the disposal of TSY Group
during the year. The Group's borrowing is a fixed-rate borrowing
and bears interest at 5.45% per annum (2017: 10%).

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group's transactions
were mostly denominated in US dollars, Hong Kong dollars,
Renminbi and Canadian dollars. The Group did not have
significant exposure to foreign exchange fluctuation as the
management monitors the related foreign currencies closely and
will consider hedging for significant foreign currency exposure, if

necessary.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEWED

Conversion of the Bonds

With reference to the announcements of the Company dated
18 September 2017 and 29 June 2017, the Company received
a conversion notice from Lushan Investment Holdings Limited,
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and is
a wholly-owned subsidiary of China Huarong International
Holdings Limited (FEIZEREIFRIZR AR AF]), the bond holder,
for the entire exercise of the conversion rights attaching to the
3% coupon convertible bonds issued by the Company on 30
July 2014 (the "Bonds”) in respect of the principal amount of
HK$75,000,000 of the Bonds at the conversion price of HK$0.23
per conversion share on 18 September 2017. Upon conversion
of the Bonds,
allotted and issued, credited as fully paid, to Lushan Investment

a total of 326,086,956 conversion shares was

Holdings Limited. The 326,086,956 conversion shares, having an
aggregate nominal value of HK$3,260,869.56,
8.9% and 8.2% of the issued share capital of the Company

represent about

immediately before and after the issue of such conversion shares
respectively.

On 20 September 2017, the Company allotted and issued a total
of 326,086,956 shares to Lushan Investment Holdings Limited.

Pledge of Assets

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the general credit facilities
granted to the Group are secured by investment properties of
HK$Nil (2017: HK$168,546,000).

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities.

Staff

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had a total staff of 64 (2017:
70) of which 47 (2017: 55) were employed in the overseas.
The Group provides employee benefits such as staff insurance,
retirement scheme, discretionary bonus and share option scheme
and also provides in-house training programmes and external
training sponsorship.

12 China Sinostar Group Company Limited Annual Report 2018

BiEs

KR2EARARFTARAZZTE—ttFNLATNBERZE
—tFARNAZTNBZAE - AR A ELushan
Investment Holdings Limited Z #A%@ %1 (FZ A 7
REBHERRESTMAK T - 2 B = g B R 4%
BRERLR(BESFHEAINZEMBAR) K=
T—tFNATNBRBRETEMERARQTR

—MmMFEL A=+ HB#1T2AR%%75,000,000%
TZI3EREAMKRES([EF ] WRRER - 3
BEAEREBRRKHB2IB T - FEHFERE
& $£326,086,956 % ¥ A I 17 45 A A BR 71 7% B R
2 A A B K& E 1T FLushan Investment Holdings
Limited ° 326,086,956/ ¥ Ik X fH ~ &2 E B &
3,260,869.56/87C * N AlME BEEITZFERRKRMD
A& RN A A B BITIRZAR48.9% 58.2% °

—+t® N A=+ H  K&%HEmMLushan
e & % 17 & H&

g
Investment Holdings Limited?
326,086,956 f& 17 °

EERM

HE-Z—)\FZA=+—HLFE LEEER
2 REERERREDESTEL( T —+LF:
168,546,000/ 7T ) {EE R °

HREE

RZZ-NF=ZA=+—H AEHETEEARA
afE -

’E

RZE-NF=ZA=1+—R TEEASHKHEEF64
%(:;ﬁ—ti C70%)EE EEPM%(_?E—‘E
F)REIMER - AEEREBTRRE
BISEa RBRETEISREERA
FIRIE RIMEBIFANEB

ﬁ( JriJ
HAEpEE

D)\ k



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB wER D T

MATERIAL ACQUISITION

With reference to the paragraphs headed “Properties
Development Business” in this section, the Group entered into
an acquisition agreement to acquire 100% equity interest of
Benxi Tongsheng Property Development Limited during the year
ended 31 March 2018. Save as disclosed above, the Group did
not have any material acquisition during the reporting period.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD

Save as disclosed in the paragraphs headed “Business Review”
and “Material Acquisition” in this section, the Group did not
have any significant investment held for the year ended 31
March 2018.

FUTURE PLANS RELATING TO MATERIAL
INVESTMENT OR CAPITAL ASSET

With reference to the paragraphs headed “Prospect” in
this section, the Company will actively seek for potential
opportunities in different industries and business sectors.
However, the Group has not executed any legally binding
agreement in relation to material investment or acquisition
of capital assets and did not have any future plans relating
to material investment or capital assets as at the date of this

annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2018 (2017: Nil).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the financial year of 2018, neither the Company nor its
subsidiaries purchased, or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE

EENGHREEEEBE

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Jing, aged 63, is the executive Director and the
Chairman of the Board of the Company. He is a vice chairman of
Liaoning Federation of Industry and Commerce (E&EE T4
@), a Liaoning Province Model Worker (FE % & &R &) in 2006,
and a member of People’s Congress of Benxi City (AEH A AR
). He has founded Liaoning Shihua Property and he had been
appointed as the general manager of Liaoning Shihua Group
(EZEEFEELE) (“"Liaoning Shihua Group”) since April 2007. He
currently acts as the chairman of Liaoning Shihua Group. He has
also been an executive member of the Property Development
Industry Association of Liaoning Province (EEEEIMETEH S
BHIEE) since March 2012, In February 2014, Mr. Wang was
awarded as “Liaoning Province Excellent Builder” (EEEEF
323 #) by various organisations including the Liaoning United
Front Work Department of the Chinese Communist Party (2t
FEEEZGEI). As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Wang
is the sole director and beneficial owner of the equity interest
in Liaoning Shihua (Group) Property Development Limited* &
BEF(ED)EWEMZEABR AT (“Liaoning Shihua”), being the
substantial shareholder of the Group. Details of his interest in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company are set out in
the section headed”Directors’ Report”. Save as aforesaid, Mr.
Wang did not hold any directorship in other listed companies in
the last three years. Mr. Wang Jing is the father of Mr. Wang
Xing Qiao, the executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company. Mr. Wang is also the chairman of the nomination
committee of the Company.

Mr. Wang Xing Qiao, aged 30, is the executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Mr. Wang graduated in
the University of Toronto with a bachelor’s degree in commerce
with high distinction in 2009. He also obtained a master of
philosophy degree in finance from the Judge Business School
of the University of Cambridge in 2010. He is currently the
deputy general manager of Liaoning Shihua Group and is also
the Shenyang regional general manager of Liaoning Shihua
Group. Mr. Wang is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Group. Mr. Wang did not hold any directorship in other listed
companies in the last three years. He is the son of Mr. Wang
Jing, the executive Director and Chairman of the Board.

* for identification purposes only
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE

EERSREEERE

Mr. Zhao Shuang, aged 38, is the executive Director of the
Company. He graduated from Changchun University (R&AZ) in
2002, majored in marketing and sales. Mr. Zhao was appointed
as the head of assets management of Liaoning Shihua Group in
2009 and later the general manager of Liaoning Shihua Group
responsible for assets management in January 2014. Prior to
joining Liaoning Shihua Group, Mr. Zhao was a project manager,
an assistant to general manager and a vice general manager of
Dalian Dongzhan Group Co. Ltd (KEEREEEER A7) from
2002 to 2009. Mr. Zhao did not hold any directorship in other
listed companies in the last three years.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Ping, aged 48,
Director of the Company. Mr.

is the independent non-executive
Wang has over 18 years of
experience in corporate finance, audit and accounting. Mr. Wang
is currently acting as the non-executive director of Chongyi
Zhangyuan Tungsten Co., Ltd (stock code: 002378.sz),
Ltd (stock code: 002272.sz) and Bojun Education
Limited (stock code: 1758), the independent non-executive
director of China Hangking Holdings Limited (stock code: 3788),
China Tianrui Group Cement Company Limited (stock code:
1252) and Jiayao Holdings Limited (stock code: 1626), Shenzhen
Ltd (stock code: 002369.52).
Ltd. (stock code: 002812.57).

Sichuan
Crun Co.,

Zowee Technology Co., Yunan

Chuangxin New Material Co,.

Mr. Wang worked as vice president in EV Capital Pte Ltd from
May 2007 and March 2010. From February 2004 to March
2007, he served as chief financial officer for China Jishan
Holdings Limited (BT LIERBRA ),

are listed on the main board of Singapore Stock Exchange.

the shares of which

From September 1999 to August 2002, he served as a senior
accountant and subsequently a manager for audit department
of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA Ltd. He was also an executive
director and the chief financial officer of China First Capital
Group Limited (formerly known as China Vehicle Components
Technology Holdings Limited) (stock code: 1269), from April
2014 to December 2015 and from March 2012 to December
2015 respectively.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE

EERSREEERE

Mr. Wang graduated from Nanjing University (5 5 KX2) majoring
in Economics and Management in 1993 and obtained a master’s
degree in business administration from Lingnan (University)
College of Sun Yat-Sen University (FILUAE) in 2004. He is a
non-practising member of Shanghai Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Wang is the chairman of the audit committee
and a member of the remuneration committee of the Company.

Mr. Cheng Tai Kwan Sunny, aged 46, is the independent non-
executive Director of the Company. He obtained a bachelor’s
degree of business administration in accounting from The Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology in November 1996,
a master of science degree from The Chinese University of Hong
Kong in December 2006 and a degree of executive master of
business administration from Northwestern University and The
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in December
2009. He also obtained a Juris Doctor degree from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong in November 2017. Mr. Cheng was
admitted as an associate of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants in July 1999 and a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in September
2001. Mr. Cheng has years of experience in management,
financial reporting and management accounting. Mr. Cheng
worked for a subsidiary of Li & Fung Limited, a company listed
on the Stock Exchange from January 2005 to June 2012. Mr.
Cheng has been appointed as an independent non-executive
director of Mengke Holdings Limited (stock code: 1269), Hua
Lien International (Holding) Company Limited (stock code: 969)
and Bojun Education Limited (stock code: 3788) since November
2016, December 2017 and July 2018 respectively. Mr. Cheng
is currently the chief executive officer of a private group. Mr.
Cheng is the member of audit committee, nomination committee

and remuneration committee.

Mr. Song Wenke, aged 43, is the independent non-executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Song was graduated from
the Dalian University of Technology with major in business
administration. He has extensive experience in corporate
operations and management. Mr. Song has acted as the deputy
director of Dalian PiMi Marine Biological Research Institute**
(KEFKEGFEWMHFLBL) since June 2016. Mr. Song is the
chairman of the remuneration committee and the member of

audit committee and nomination committee.

* for identification purposes only
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Senior Management

Mr. Gary Atkinson, aged 37, joined The Singing Machine
Company, Inc. in January 2008 and was appointed as the
interim chief executive officer in November 2009. Mr. Atkinson
is a licensed attorney in the State of Florida and Georgia. He
graduated from the University of Rochester with a Bachelors
Degree in Economics and was awarded a dual-degree J.D./M.B.A.
from Case Western Reserve University School of Law and
Weatherhead School of Management.

Mr. Peter Horak, aged 79, was appointed as the chief executive
officer of Cosmo Canada in January 2001. He is also the
co-founder of Cosmo Canada. Mr. Horak has extensive
knowledge and experience in distribution of consumer electronics
products in Canada. Prior to joining Cosmo Canada, Mr. Horak
worked with several top electronic companies and served as
Sanyo’s vice president of sales and marketing. He leads the sales
team to open new markets and develop new products and works
closely with the administrative group and warehouse supporting

group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERHE

The Company is committed to maintain a high standard of
corporate governance. The board of directors (the “Directors”,
each a "Director”) of the Company firmly believes that the
maintenance of a good, solid and sensible framework of
corporate governance will ensure the Company to run its

business in the best interests of its shareholders as a whole.

The Company adopted all the code provisions in Corporate
Governance Code (the “Code Provisions”) contained in appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) as its own code on corporate governance practices
and guidance.

During the year ended 31 March 2018 and up to the date of
this annual report, the Company has complied with the Code
Provisions except the following: —

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda and enacted by
private act, the Starlight International Holdings Limited Company
Act, 1989 of Bermuda (the “1989 Act”). Pursuant to section 3(e)
of the 1989 Act, director holding office as executive chairman or
managing director shall not be subject to retirement by rotation
at each annual general meeting as provided in the bye-laws of
the Company (“the Bye-laws"”). As the Company is bound by the
provisions of the 1989 Act, the Bye-laws cannot be amended to
fully reflect the requirements of the Code Provision A.4.2 which
stipulates that every director, including those appointed for a
specific term, should be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years.

To comply with the Code Provision A.4.2, all directors will be
voluntarily retired from his directorship at the subsequent annual
general meetings of the Company at least once every three
years, provided that, being eligible the retired directors may

offer themselves for re-election at the annual general meeting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEERWE

Pursuant to A.6.7 of the Code Provision, independent non-
executive director and other non-executive director should
attend general meeting and develop a balanced understanding
of the views of shareholders. Mr. Song Wenke, the independent
non-executive Director was unable to attend the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 29 September 2017 due to
other business commitments. In order to comply with the Code
Provision, the Company will continue to furnish all Directors with
appropriate information on all general meetings and take all
reasonable measures to arrange the schedule in such a caution
may enable all Directors to attend the general meeting as far as
possible.

Save as disclosed above, in the opinion of the Directors of the
Company, the Company has complied with all Code Provisions as
set out in the Code Provisions during the year ended 31 March
2018 and, where appropriate, the applicable recommended best
practices of the Code Provisions.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the Board

The Board is in charge of leading the Group in a responsive
and effective manner. Each Director has to carry out his
duties in utmost good faith above and beyond any prevailing
applicable laws and regulations and act in the best interests of
the shareholders. The duties of the Board include establishing
the strategic direction of the Group, setting objectives and
monitoring the performance of the Group.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board consists of
three executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors. More than one-third of the Board members are
independent non-executive Directors which enables the Board
to make decisions and judgement in an independent and
professional manner, assists the management in formulating
the Company’'s development strategies, achieving the corporate
goals and monitoring the Company’s performance. The members

of the Board as at the date of this annual report are as follows:—

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Jing (Chairman)

Mr. Wang Xing Qiao (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhao Shuang
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Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Wang Ping

Mr. Cheng Tai Kwan Sunny

Mr. Song Wenke

The Board has established schedule of matters specifically
reserved to the Board for its decision and those reserved for
the management. The Board reviews this schedule on a periodic
basis to ensure that it remains appropriate to the needs of the
Company. The brief biographical details and relationship of the
Directors are described on pages 14-17 of the annual report.

Mr. Wang Jing, the Chairman of the Board and the executive
Director, is the father of Mr. Wang Xing Qiao, the Chief
Executive Officer and the executive Director. Save as disclosed
herein, the Board members have no financial, business, family or
other material or relevant relationship with each other.

Role of the Board

The Board decides on corporate strategies, approves overall
business plans and evaluates the Group’s financial performance
and management. Specific tasks that the Board delegates to the
Group’s management include the implementation of strategies
approved by the Board, the monitoring of operating budgets,
the implementation of internal controls procedures, and ensuring
of compliance with relevant statutory requirements and other
rules and regulations.

All Directors have full and timely access to the information of
the Company as well as the advice and services of the company
secretary. The Board, may, upon request, seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expenses to assist them to perform their duties.
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties as set out below:—

1. develop and review the Company’s policies and practices

on corporate governance and make recommendations;

2. review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Director and senior
management;

3. review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

5. review the Company’s compliance with the Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report under
appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

To comply with the A.2.1 of the Code, the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company were separated and held
by Mr. Wang Jing and Mr. Wang Xing Qiao respectively. The
Chairman is responsible for the Group’s strategic planning and
directions and to provide leadership of the Board while the
Chief Executive Officer takes the lead in the daily operations and
business development.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

The three independent non-executive Directors, all of whom are
independent of the management of the Company, are highly
experienced professionals coming from diversified background.
They ensure that the Board maintains high standard of financial
and other mandatory reportings as well as providing adequate
checks and balance of safeguard the interest of shareholders
and the Company as a whole. According to the Code Provision
A.4.1, non-executive Directors should be appointed for specific
term, subject to re-election.

Mr. Wang Ping and Mr. Cheng Tai Kwan Sunny, being the
non-executive Directors of the Company, have entered into an
appointment letter with the Company pursuant to which each
of them is appointed for the service with the Company for a
fixed term of two years from 21 July 2014 to 20 July 2016 and
renewable automatically for successive terms of one year each
commencing from the day next after the expiry of the current
term of the appointment. The appointment shall terminate
on the earlier of (i) 20 July 2017 or (ii) the date on which the
directors ceases to be director or any reasons pursuant to the
bye-laws of the Company or any other applicable laws.

Mr. Song Wenke, being the non-executive Director of the
Company, has entered into an appointment letter with the
Company pursuant to which he is appointed for the service with
the Company for a fixed term of two years from 6 July 2016 to
5 July 2018 and renewable automatically for successive terms of
one year each commencing from the day next after the expiry
of the current term of the appointment. The appointment shall
terminate on the earlier of (i) 5 July 2018 or (ii) the date on
which the directors ceases to be director or any reasons pursuant
to the bye-laws of the Company or any other applicable laws.

The Board confirms that the Company has received from each
of the independent non-executive Directors a confirmation of
independence for the year ended 31 March 2018 pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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Director’s Training and Professional Development

Under the Code Provision A.6.5, directors should participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills; and to ensure that their contributions
to the Board remains informed and relevant. During the year
ended 31 March 2018, all Directors confirmed that they had
complied with the Code Provision A.6.5 by reading all materials
provided by the company secretary and/or attending regular
trainings on the topics relating to corporate governance and
latest change and development of regulatory regime launched
by professional parties. The Company has received the training
records from each of the directors.

Board Meetings and Attendance Records of Directors

Board meetings are held regularly at approximately quarterly
intervals to review the financial and operating performance
of the Group and also held on ad hoc basis as required by
the business needs. All Directors are given an opportunity to
include matters for discussion in the agenda and give opinion.
Regular Board meetings and ad hoc Board meetings are attended
by a majority of the Directors in person or through other
electronic means of communication. In addition, all Directors are
encouraged to attend the general meetings of the Company.
During the year ended 31 March 2018, other than resolutions
passed in writing by all the Directors, the Board held a total of
8 board meetings and 2 general meetings:

EERIIREXERE

RIBETARNEACSIE EFFLNFEEXHE
B ARFTREM WM E 2 M R - A RERE
EABEATIAMBHEERFLER - REZE
TE-N\F=ZA=T-HILFE 2BEFER
RECHEARNERTEZMBER  RKEE
MEXERAEN REBEECEERRRNEEH
FEERERARZERE - HEETTANEX
FAGSG  ARFDEKERERTZIEIIRHE -

EXZREBRESHETE

EERERETNEEFTERT X UEHAE
BB E2ERR TAREGHTERTHERS
#o 2REEURARPHAUMRS R EEL LS
HER - RN EFHHIEBHEMET BRI
HEFREEREEAMBRESERSH I 2
REEORIBHL2NARFARRAG - BE_FT—
NF=ZA=+—HLFE KErREFEMREN
REBEFI  BEERABITNREERERLMAMK
RAE:

Numbers of Numbers of

Board meetings General Meetings

Names of Directors BEEnA attended/held attended/held
HE/RBITESR HEBITRE

BERH REEERE

Wang Jing T & 8/8 0/2
Wang Xing Qiao TEF 8/8 1/2
Zhao Shuang iz B 8/8 0/2
Wang Ping TF 8/8 2/2
Cheng Tai Kwan Sunny LN =] 8/8 2/2
Song Wenke RXE} 8/8 0/2
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DIRECTOR’S SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopts the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules (the “Model Code”), as the code of conduct
regarding directors’ securities transactions. The Company has
made specific enquiry of all directors that they have complied
with the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March

2018.

BOARD COMMITTEES

To strengthen the functions of the Board and enhance its
expertise, the Company established three Board committees
namely, the audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee. Each of the committees performs

different functions.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee was established with defined terms of
reference in alignment with the recommendations set out in “A
Guide for Effective Audit Committees” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Code Provisions
set out in the Code of the Listing Rules. During the reporting

year, the composition of the audit committee was as below:—

Mr. Wang Ping (Chairman)
Mr. Cheng Tai Kwun Sunny
Mr. Song Wenke

The audit committee members meet no less than twice a year
with the senior management and the external auditors. The role
and function of the audit committee including the review of
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
and other financial reporting matters, the assurance of the
completeness, accuracy and fairness of the financial statement
of the Group, monitor the effectiveness of the internal control
and risk management systems throughout the Group and most
importantly, to review all significant business affairs managed by

the executive Directors in particular on connected transactions.
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The committee also provides advices and recommendations
to the Board and oversees all matters relating to the external
auditors, and it plays an important role in monitoring and
safeguarding the independence of external auditors. The audit
committee met twice during the financial year ended 31 March
2018. Works undertook by the audit committee included:

o reviewing of the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2018 and for the six months ended 30
September 2017;

o reviewing of the auditor’'s fees and its re-appointment;
and
o reviewing internal control and risk management system.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee was established with defined
terms of reference. During the year ended 31 March 2018, the
remuneration committee comprises three independent non-

executive Directors and the composition was as below:—

Mr. Song Wenke (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Ping
Mr. Cheng Tai Kwan Sunny

The primary objectives of the remuneration committee including
making recommendation to the remuneration package and
structure of the executive Directors and senior management.
In designing the remuneration policy, the Company aims to
attract and retain executive needed to operation the Group
successfully and to motivate executives to pursue appropriate
growth strategies whilst taking into account performance of
the individual. The remuneration should reflect performance,
complexity and responsibility of the individual; and the
remuneration package will be structured to include salary, bonus
and share options scheme to provide incentives to Directors and

senior management to improve their individual performances.
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The remuneration committee members met once during the
financial year ended 31 March 2018. Works undertook by the
remuneration committee during the reporting year included:—

o reviewing of the remuneration policy for 2017/2018; and
o reviewing of the remuneration of the Directors and senior
management.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on appointment of Directors
regarding the qualification and competency of the candidates,
also considering the reappointment of the Directors and
succession planning for Directors so as to ensure that all
nominations and appointments are fair and transparent. It takes
responsibility in assessing the appropriate mix of experience,
expertise, skills and diversity required on the Board and assessing
the extent to which the required skills are represented on the
Board and overseeing the Board succession. It is also responsible
for reviewing and reporting to the Board in relation to Board
diversity.

Board Diversity Policy

In addition, the Company has formulated and adopted a Board
diversity policy since 2013 aiming at setting out the approach
on diversity of the Board. The Board recognizes the importance
of having a diverse Board in enhancing the effectiveness and
corporate governance of the Board. A diverse Board makes
good use of differences in the skills, industry knowledge and
experience, education, background and other qualities of
directors of the Company and does not discriminate on the
ground of race, age, gender or religious belief. These differences
will be taken into account in determining the optimum
composition of the Board and when possible should be balanced
appropriately. During the year ended 31 March 2018, the
composition of the nomination committee was as below:—

Mr. Wang Jing (Chairman)

Mr. Cheng Tai Kwan
Mr. Song Wenke
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The nomination committee members held 1 meeting during the
financial year ended 31 March 2018. Works undertook by the
nomination committee during the reporting year included:—

o reviewing the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board;

o making recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

o assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;
o reviewing and make recommendations to the Board on

re-election of retiring Directors; and

o reviewing and make recommendations to the Board on

appointment of Directors.

COMMITTEE MEETINGS

The attendance record of each committee members during the
year ended 31 March 2018 is shown as below:—

REZEENERBEZ-_ZT—\F=ZA=+—HL
MBREERIT-REH - RREFE RELZEE
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. BUEERZARE ABRAKR(BER
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#:R

«  RARREAEFAEFREHEERSE -

ZEEER
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Audit Remuneration Nomination

Name of Directors EEHZ Committee Committee Committee

BitEEE FHEES REEEE

Wang Jing T N/A 3 B N/A I3 A 11

Wang Ping TF 2/2 1/1 N/A i A

Cheng Tai Kwan Sunny (N 2/2 11 11

Song Wenke R H 2/2 11 1/1
COMPANY SECRETARY ATIE

During the year ended 31 March 2018, Mr. Lam Wai Kei is the
company secretary of the Company. Mr. Lam Wai Kei has duly
complied with the relevant professional training requirement
under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

HE-Z-NF=ZA=1t—HILFE MHEELLE
RARRZARWE - MEELLECEEETLED
MAIE3 2916 EAHEEIFIIRE
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration in respect of service provided by ZHONGHUI
ANDA CPA Limited for the Group for the year ended 31 March
2018 was analysed as follows:
Audit Service HK$1,350,000

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR PREPARING THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management provides the explanation and information to
the Board to facilitate an informed assessment of the financial
and other information put before the Board for approval.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare the
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Group. Meanwhile, the Directors are responsible
for ensuring that appropriate accounting policies are selected
and applied consistently; and that judgments and estimates
made are prudent and reasonable. In preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2018, the accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong have been adopted
and the requirements of the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the applicable laws were complied with. The
Board was not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that might cast significant doubt upon the
Group’s ability to continue as going concern. The Board has
prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis. The
reporting responsibilities of external auditor of the Company are
disclosed in “Independent Auditor’s Report”.
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INTERNAL CONTROL & RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining a sound
and effective internal control system of the Group. The
system includes a defined management structure with limits
of authority, safeguard its assets against unauthorized use of
disposition, ensures the maintenance of proper accounting
records for the provision of reliable financial information
for internal use or for publication, and ensures compliances
with relevant laws and regulations. The system is designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss, and to manage the risks of failure in the
Group's operational systems and in the achievement of the
Group’s objectives. The Board would review the internal control
system and risk management from time to time and at least once
a year. During the year, the Company has conducted a review
of the effectiveness of system of internal control including risk
management system and also the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function and also made recommendations to
follow up. The Company considered the internal control and risk

management systems effective and adequate.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDER’S
AND INVESTOR RELATION

The Board recognizes the importance of good communication
with the shareholders. Information in relation to the Group is
disseminated to the shareholders in a timely manner through
a number of formation channels, which include interim and
annual reports, announcements and circulars of the Company.
The general meetings of the Company are valuable forum for
the Board to communicate directly with the shareholders. The
shareholders are encouraged to attend the general meetings of
the Company. An annual general meeting of the Company was
held on 29 September 2017 (the “2017 AGM") and a special
general meeting of the Company was held on 8 September 2017
(the “2017 SGM"). A notice convening the 2017 AGM contained
in the circular dated 28 August 2017 was despatched to the
shareholders together with 2017 Annual Report and the notice
convening the 2017 SGM contained in the circular dated 22
August 2017 was despatched to the shareholders on 22 August
2017. The Board of Directors attended the 2017 AGM and 2017
SGM to answer questions from the shareholders. The chairman
of the meeting of 2017 AGM and 2017 SGM explained detailed

procedures for conduction of a poll. All resolutions proposed
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at the 2017 AGM and 2017 SGM were passed separately by
the shareholders by way of poll. The results of the poll were
published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company after the meetings.

The Company is committed to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. Designated senior management
maintains an open dialogue with institutional investors and

analysts to keep them abreast of the Group’s development.

The Company has maintained a company website
(www.00485.hk) for the purpose of updating the Company’s
business developments and operations, financial information and
news. Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing through the company secretary
whose contact details are as follows:—

Address: Rooms 05-15, 13A/F., South Tower, World
Finance Centre, Harbour City, 17 Canton Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Fax: +852 2208 6008

Email: office@00485.hk

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Shareholders are entitled to requisition a special general meeting
and put forward proposals at general meeting. Please refer to
the procedures as follows:

(A) Procedures for requisitioning a special general

meeting

Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company carrying the right to vote at general
meetings of the Company may, by written requisition to
the Board or the company secretary signed and deposited
in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company,
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, require the Directors
to call a special general meeting for the transaction of
business specified in the requisition.
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(B) Procedures for putting forward proposals at general

meetings

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-twentieth of
the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right
to vote at general meetings of the Company or not less
than 100 Shareholders may, at their expense, provide a
written request to the attention of the company secretary
signed and deposited in accordance with the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981.

Besides, the Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws of
the Company is posted on the website of the Company at
www.00485.hk and the designated website of the Stock
Exchange at www.hkexnews.hk.

There were no material changes to the Memorandum of
Association and Bye-laws of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2018.

CONCLUSION

The Company strongly believes that the quality and standard of
corporate governance reflects the quality of the management
and the operations of the Group’s business. Good corporate
governance can safeguard the proper use of funds and effective
allocation of resources and to protect shareholders’ interests.
The management wholeheartedly advocated of the good practice
in corporate governance and will try our best to maintain,
strengthen and improve the standard and quality of the Group’s
corporate governance.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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China Sinostar Group Company Limited and its subsidiaries are
pleased to present its Environmental, Social and Governance
Report (the "ESG Report”) for the year ended 31 March 2018.
The ESG Report summarizes the policies and achievement made
by the Group in corporate social responsibility and sustainability

development.

We believe that sustainability is crucial and important for the
Group’'s development and to achieve business excellence and
enhance capabilities for long-term competitiveness. The Group
will continue to strive a balance among business development,
environmental protection and social responsibility and to create
sustainable value for the Group and stakeholders.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group did not
observe any material non-compliance on the applicable social
and environmental laws and regulations that has a significant
impact on the Group.

REPORTING SCOPE

This report covers the performance of the Group in the
environmental and social aspects of its businesses, namely the
electronic products business, hydroelectric power business,
properties investment business and properties development

business during the reporting period.

For corporate governance of the Group, please refer to the
section headed “Corporate Governance Report” of this annual

report.

REPORTING PRINCIPLES

This report is prepared in accordance with the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide” of the Stock Exchange
set out in appendix 27 of the Listing Rules. The ESG Report
provides a simplified overview on the environmental, social
and governance performance of the Group. The information in
the ESG Report is derived from the integration and summary
conducted by the management and the operational information

provided by the subsidiaries of the Group.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BRI HERERKRSE

STAKEHOLDERS" ENGAGEMENT

We believe that good communication with the investors,

shareholders, employees and other stakeholders is the

foundation for the Group to formulate its policies for sustainable

development. We attach great importance to the opinions of

the stakeholders and will drive attentions and perform regular

reviews on those areas.

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK

The Group welcomes stakeholders’ feedback on our

environmental, social and governance approach and

performance. Please give your suggestions or share your views
with us via email: office@00485.hk.

A.

ENVIRONMENT

Sustainable development has been adopted as an
objective of the Group. The Group is committed to
minimize the greenhouse gas and emissions waste which
are derived from the daily operations of the Group
and strive to mitigate the damages and risks to the
environment. Policies were formulated and adopted which
aim at complying with the applicable requirements of
the laws and regulations in the US, Europe, the PRC and
Hong Kong.

Throughout the reporting period, the Group created
an environmental friendly workplace for our employees
and introduced a series of environmental protection
policies aiming to reduce the energy consumption in
daily operations and enhance the efficiency on the use of

resources.

To reduce paper consumption, the Group encouraged
its employees to reduce the usage of photocopies,
print double-sided for internal documents and external
documents, where appropriate, use electronic copies.
Recycle boxes and bins were placed at offices to
collect non-reusable paper and waste. The Group also
encouraged its employees to segregate non-recyclable and
recyclable waste and reuse and recycle the office supplies,
such as binders, file folders and papers.
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To reduce electricity consumption, the air-conditioners
installed at offices were maintained at room temperature
of 25.5 degree which could reduce the usage of excess
electricity energy. The Group also kept reminding the
employees to switch off the lights and air-conditioners
when not in use to lower the electricity consumption.
In addition, the Group encouraged the use of the most
efficient travelling method and set up video-conference
and teleconference facilities at offices to minimize
unnecessary business travels which may subsequently

reduce greenhouse gas emissions from air travels.

Furthermore, efforts have been made to enhance
the attentions of our suppliers and clients regarding
environmental protection and energy conservation. One of
our major businesses is the trading of electronic products.
We have set up policies and procedures to ensure our
electronic products, such as karaoke machines, meet the
safety standards imposed in various national, state, local,
and provincial jurisdictions. Our karaoke machines sold in
the US are designed, manufactured and tested to meet
the safety standards of Underwriters Laboratories, Inc.
("ULE") or Electronic Testing Laboratories (“ETL").

In Europe and other foreign countries, our products
are manufactured to meet the Consumer Electronics
("CE") marking requirements. CE marking is a mandatory
European product marking and certification system for
certain designated products. When affixed to a product
and product packaging, CE marking indicates that a
particular product complies with all applicable European
product safety, health and environmental requirements
within the CE marking system. Products complying with
CE marking are now accepted to be safe in 28 European
countries. However, ULE or ETL certification does not
mean that a product complies with the product safety,
health and environmental regulations contained in all fifty
states in the US. Therefore, the Group maintains a quality
control program designed to ensure the compliance with
all applicable US and federal laws pertaining to the sale
of our products.
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Emission

Based on the review during the reporting period,
the Group’s businesses did not generate significant
greenhouse gas and emission wastes and those were
indirectly and mainly derived from the consumption
of electricity and paper at the workplace, vehicles and
business travels by the employees. The discharge into
water and land, generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste during the course of operations was
minimal.

The Group set up several offices in different regions,
including Hong Kong, the PRC, Canada and the US for
business operations, the electricity consumption by the
Group at its offices was approximately 239,000kWh,
producing CO2 equivalent emissions of approximately
189,000kg during the year ended 31 March 2018.

Non-hazardous waste produced was mainly office paper.
The Group introduced various policies and encouraged
its employees to go paperless as much as possible.
During the reporting period, the Group used a total
of approximately 195 thousands of papers in its daily
operations.

Use of Resources

In order to make full use of resources, the Group has
untaken various measures to demonstrate our efforts in
efficient use of resources in daily operations. Further, the
Group believes that the participation of its employees are
also important for the Group in the implementation of
related policies. Hence, the Group has strived to create
a corporate culture of resources saving and to enhance
employees’ awareness of environmental protection and
energy saving. During the year ended 31 March 2018, the
Group didn’t purchase any motor vehicles, all employees
were encouraged to use public transportation for business
travels.
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In respect of water consumption, the impact was minimal
and non-significant amount of water was wasted in the
daily business activities during the reporting period. The
cost of water consumption of the Company is inclusive in
the monthly rent and the building management does not
individually measure water consumptions of each tenant
hence no relevant data can be collected.

The Environmental and Natural Resources

The Group’'s business had minimal impacts on
environmental and natural resources during the year
ended 31 March 2018. Indeed, the Group has been
supporting the development in renewable energy since
2016 and it has become one of the core businesses of the
Group.

With reference to the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis”, the Group engaged in the
business of the renewable energy and operated two
hydroelectric power stations in the Northern China during
the year ended 31 March 2018. The installed capacity of
the two hydroelectric power stations are 3,500 kW and
3,200 kW respectively and those hydroelectric power
stations are connected to the national power grid.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the two
hydroelectric power stations generated a total of
electricity of approximately 14,000,000kWh which has
supported the commercial and residential use via the
national power grid in the PRC.

SOCIAL

Employment and Labour Practices

The Group believes that employees are the most important
asset of the Group. During the reporting period, the
Group complied with all relevant laws, regulations and
rules related to compensation, dismissal, recruitment
and promotion to protect the rights and benefits of the
employees.
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Moreover, the Group offers remuneration packages at a
competitive level and reviews them on a regular basis in
order to recruit and retain the employees. To recognize
the contributions of the employees, the Company
offers discretionary bonus to the employees and senior
management by reference to the Group’s performance
as well as the individual performance. The Group also
promotes equal opportunity for employees towards
gender, race, religion, age, disability, sexual orientation,
nationality, political opinion, or social or ethnic origin.
No employee is allowed to be subject to any form of
discrimination on recruitment, training development and
career development. For the year ended 31 March 2018,
the Group has total of 64 employees of which 47 were
employed in the overseas.

Health and Safety

The Group strives to provide a healthy and safe working
environment for all employees and believes that it can
enhance their sense of belonging and productivity. The
Group requires all departments in different regions to
strictly follow relevant laws and regulations in relation to
safe working environment and protection for occupational
hazards. Workplaces are properly designed with first aid
facilities and emergency exists are installed. During the
year ended 31 March 2018, there was no work-related
fatalities.

Development and Training

The Group conceives that training plays an important
role for personal development, work efficiency and
productivity. The Group encourages its employees to
participate in different training programmes to improve
knowledge and skills for discharging duties at work.
During the reporting period, staff, senior management
and directors engaged in different training programmes
provided by the government, non-profit statutory or
professional bodies and professional education centers.
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Labour Standards

The Group complies with the relevant labour laws,
regulations and rules in its operating regions, including
Hong Kong, Macau, the PRC, Canada and the US. In order
to prevent child and forced labour, the Group conducts
background checks, such as age, academic qualification,
previous job references, so as to ensure the employees
meet the minimum age standard and applicable laws in
those designated regions.

Supply Chain Management

To maintain the quantity as well as the quality of our
products, the Group emphasises on the selection of
suppliers and maintains an approved list of the suppliers
in which the admission is subject to the assessment of
their background, quality and quantity of the products,
prices and response to suggestions and customers’
feedback. Moreover, the management team reviews and
updates the list from time to time. Regular meetings are
arranged between suppliers and management team for
the improvement of products and review on customers’
feedback.

For the Group’s business in the trading of electronic
products, 100% of products purchased were
manufactured by factories in the PRC during the year
ended 31 March 2018.

Product Responsibility

The Group strictly followed the applicable and relevant
laws and regulations related to products standards,
quality control and labeling. In addition, it also requires
its suppliers to comply with the same standard as well
as other applicable laws and regulations in respect of
product safety, quality control, measurement and labeling.
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Returns of Goods

For the Group's business in the trading of electronic
products, we allow the return of electronic hardware
and music products by customers due to damages and
incorrect shipments. The Group’s policy is to give credit
to customers for the returns in conjunction with the
receipt of new replacement purchase orders.

Trademarks and Patents

We believe that trademarks are a significant asset towards
the Group as they provide product recognition. We
have applied and obtained registered trademarks for the
subsidiaries of the Group in Hong Kong, Australia, the US
and Europe, such as the name and logo of “The Singing
Machine”. Furthermore, we have been obtained two US
design patents for karaoke machines since 2013.

Copyrights and Licenses

In respect of the business in the trading of electronic
products of the Group, we offer karaoke music
through our Singing Machine Karaoke Download Store,
Community, and iPhone/iPad App through a partnership
with Stingray Digital Group (“Stingray”). Stingray holds
all licensing agreements directly with the music publishers
and is responsible for all royalty payments. Stingray is the
leading multi-platform music service provider in the world,
with an estimated 110 million Pay-TV subscribers in 111
countries around the world. Geared towards individuals
and businesses alike, the company’s commercial entities
include leading digital music and video services Stingray
Music, Concert TV and The KARAOKE Channel.

Personal Data Protection

Regarding the customer data protection and privacy, the
Group complies with applicable laws and regulations,
such as the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance in Hong
Kong. Relevant rules and guidelines are also set out in
the employment contracts so as to ensure compliance.
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Anti-corruption

Integrity, ethics, fairness and honesty are the core values
of the Group. The Group formulated policies against
bribery, fraud and money laundering in accordance with
the relevant laws and regulations, such as the Prevention
of Bribery Ordinance of the Laws of Hong Kong. For the
year ended 31 March 2018, there was no concluded legal
case regarding corrupt practices brought against the
Group or its employees during the reporting period.

Community Investment

The Group encourages its employees to dedicate their
time to support the local community by participating
in charity activities and fund-raising events and making
donations to non-profit organization. In addition, the
Group also makes donations and contributes goods to
local charities, churches and to programs sponsored by
some of our major customers.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EERWMESE

The Directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 March 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its
principal subsidiaries are engaged in the design and sale of a
wide range of electronic products, operation and management
of hydroelectric power stations, properties investment, properties
development and securities trading during the year.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2018
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income on pages 62-63. The directors of
the Company have determined that no dividends will be paid in
respect of the year ended 31 March 2018 (2017: Nil).

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

Details of principal properties held for development and for
investment purposes are set out on page 143 of the annual
report.

SHARE ISSUED IN THE YEAR

Details of the shares issued in the year ended 31 March 2018
are set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE

There is no reserve available for distribution to shareholders as
at 31 March 2018.

EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENTS

(a) Convertible bonds

With reference to the section headed “Management

Discussion and Analysis”, the Bonds was fully converted
and a total of 326,086,956 conversion shares was allotted
and issued, credited as fully paid to the bond holder,
Lushan Investment Holdings Limited, on 20 September
2017. As at 31 March 2018, there is no outstanding

convertible bonds.
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(b) Share Option Scheme

Details of the Share Option Scheme is set out in note 38
to the consolidated financial statements and the section
headed “Share options” contained in the Directors’
Report. No shares were issued pursuant to the Share
Option Scheme during the year ended 31 March 2018.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws and there was no restriction against such rights under
the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the
group for the last five financial years is set out on page 180 of
this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2018, neither the Company
nor its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company'’s listed securities.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company has a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) which
was approved and adopted at the special general meeting
of the Company held on 15 January 2008 for a period of 10
years. With reference to the composite offer and response
document dated 30 June 2014 jointly issued by Achieve Prosper
Capital Limited and Starlight International Holdings Limited
(currently named as “China Sinostar Group Company Limited”)
(the “"Composite Document”) in respect of the mandatory
unconditional cash offers by Kingston Securities Limited, on
behalf of the Achieve Prosper Capital Limited, to acquire all the
issued shares (other than those already owned and agreed to
be acquired by the Achieve Prosper Capital Limited and parties
acting in concert with it), and to cancel all outstanding shares
options of the Company. From 21 July 2014 onward, being
the latest time and date for acceptance of the Listco Offers (as
defined in the Composite Document), no shares options were
granted, exercised or cancelled by the Company under the
Scheme. The Scheme was expired on 15 January 2018.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year ended 31 March
2018 and up to the date of the directors’ report were:

Executive Directors

Wang Jing (Chairman)

Wang Xing Qiao (Chief Executive Officer)
Zhao Shuang

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Wang Ping

Cheng Tai Kwan Sunny

Song Wenke

Pursuant to the code provision A.4.2 of the Code, all directors
are subject to retirement by rotation at the subsequent annual
general meetings of the Company at least once every three
years,

provided that, being eligible for re-election, they may

offer themselves for re-election at the annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN
RELATION TO THE COMPANY'’S BUSINESS

The Company or its subsidiaries have entered into a number of
transactions with entities in which the former executive Directors
have substantial shareholding. Details of those transactions
are set out in the section headed “"Connected Transaction” in
this annual report. Save as disclosed above, no transactions,
arrangements and contract of significance in relation to the
Group’s business, to which the Company, any of its controlling
entities or its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director
had a material interest, directly or indirectly, subsisted during or
at the end of the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS
IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR
ANY SPECIFIED UNDERTAKING OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY OTHER ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION

As at 31 March 2018, the interests and short positions of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company in the shares and
share options of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO which are required (a)
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (b) pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c)
pursuant to the Model Code in the Listing Rules to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:

(i) Long Position in the Shares
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BAERAARREBEEZE(ERERBFH R
EIEMEXVE) 2’ REREFESE ()REES
MEIEENEXVRETIRSH B2 B EAMNE AR
RIS AR (BERERESRBEK
Pl EXBBESWR BB 2 EmAR)  5ib)
BB A MBS IS0 53526 BR8N AR TR E
ZAEDI T %2 B 2w ROk R - S(O)RIE £
A ZZESFRIZBME AR R R A2 e ROK
BT

a1

(i) REBROZRE

Approximate
percentage of
issued share

Long Position/ Number of capital in the

Name of Directors Short Position Capacity Shares held Company
RADTEE#IT
EEHE RE/%KRE g1 BREE RAHMYBESH
Executive Director
WiTE=S
Wang Jing Long Position Interest of controlled 2,171,827,290 54.61%
corporation

T RE REEHEB 2 #m
Wang Xing Qiao Long Position Beneficial Owner 3,275,000 0.08%
TES KB BB A

Note: These 2,171,827,290 shares are held by Achieve Prosper
Capital Limited and wholly and beneficially owned by
Hong Kong Shihua Holdings Limited, which is in turn
wholly and beneficially owned by Liaoning Shihua. Mr.
Wang Jing is the sole director of and the beneficial
owner of 82.8% of the equity interest in Liaoning Shihua
(Group) Property Development Limited. By virtue of the
SFO, Mr. Wang Jing is deemed to be interested in these

2,171,827,290 shares.
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(ii) Directors’ interests in the shares of associated (ii) EEREBLIE 2RO 2ELS
corporations
Number of
ordinary  Approximate
shares in percentage
Achieve of issued
Name of Prosper share capital
Name of associated Director Long/Short Capital in Achieve
corporation Capacity Capacity position Limited Prosper
BRARIZ AERCDET
TR EE 2B E5nA g4 RR/%R& EZERHEE RASNEIL
Achieve Prosper Wang Jing Interest of Long position 1,000,000 100%
Capital Limited controlled
corporation
ERERBERAA T REEHEE KA

ZKEuh

Save as disclosed above and other than certain nominee Shares
in subsidiaries held by Directors in trust for the Company or its
subsidiaries, as at the date of this annual report, none of the
Company’s Directors, chief executive nor their associates had any
interests or short positions in any Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of the SFO) as notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and short positions which is taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

BREXFRBEERESTRAARREMBRARIAE

ETAFEMBAR 2ETRIBARMDIN - RAFE
HBEH MEARFAES  TBETHRABRREEZ

HEARAQRXETABEHEZE(ERRESF R
HEWGRD) 2 B - BERORESFPHER
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The aggregate sale attributable to the Group’s largest
customer and five largest customers accounted for 31% and
71% respectively of the Group’s total turnover for the year.
The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s largest
supplier and five largest suppliers accounted for 37% and 88%
respectively of the Group’s total purchases for the year. None
of the directors, their associates, or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) has any interest in the Group's five
largest customers and suppliers.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2018, the following persons, other than the
interest disclosed in the section headed “Directors and chief
executives’ interests and/or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
specified undertaking of the Company or any other associated
corporation”, had interest 5% or more in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company have notified to the
Company and have been recorded in the register of substantial
shareholders’ interests in shares and short positions required to
be kept under Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO:
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Aggregate
Number of percentage of
shares and issued share
underlying capital as at
Name of Shareholders Nature of interest shares 31 March 2018
EHRMEZE-—NEF
=B=+—8H
% 17 &% #EEE 2EBITRAE
BREREME MR EEME R & B WEDL
Achieve Prosper Capital Limited Beneficial owner 2,171,827,290 54.61%
ERERGRAF BB A
Hong Kong Shihua Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporation 2,171,827,290 54.61%
BERBERRARAA MREEREEZ Ea
Liaoning Shihua (Group) Property Interest of controlled corporation 2,171,827,290 54.61%
Development Limited
EEEE(KE)FHEREBRA M EHER 2 S
Hu Bao Qin Spouse Interest 2,171,827,290 54.61%
HEE BB =
Lushan Investment Holding Person having a security 2,917,914,246 73.37%
Limited (Note) interest in shares
Lushan Investment Holding Limited(Mf5E) #HARMEEZEZRZ AL
CHINA HUARONG ASSET Interest of controlled corporation 2,917,914,246 73.37%
MANAGEMENT CO., LTD (Note)
HEEREETERN AR A A (M) M EHNER 2 s
CHINA HUARONG INTERNATIONAL Interest of controlled corporation 2,917,914,246 73.37%

HOLDINGS LTD (Note)
R R BRI R PR A R (KT EE)

RRESEE 2 s

Note: These 2,917,914,246 shares are held by Lushan Investment S

#%5%2,917,914,246 %% 5 A Lushan Investment

Holding Limited and wholly and beneficially owned by CHINA
HUARONG INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LTD.

As at 31 March 2018, Achieve Prosper Capital Limited is wholly
and beneficially owned by Hong Kong Shihua Holdings Limited,
which is in turn wholly and beneficially owned by Liaoning
Shihua. Mr. Wang Jing is the sole director and the beneficial
owner of 82.8% of the equity interest in Liaoning Shihua. By
virtue of the SFO, Hong Kong Shihua Holdings Limited, Liaoning
Shihua, Mr. Wang Jing and Ms. Hu Bao Qin were deemed to
be interest in the said 2,171,827,290 Shares held by Achieve
Prosper Capital Limited.

Holding Limited# %A + HH EEGMBIRERE
BAREERELSES -

RZE—NF=A= + H - EZHEEREGRAFH
ERBEERARADZELE=RBE  MBEAE
EIERERAD jEEL??'iiliiﬁﬂ TS EA o T
FEREBEEEE R —EFWAHS2 8% RIEZE
HHEBA  BEFHERBERD  BEAEEERE
BAR] - BEEE  TREERMESLIHES
RN EMZERERBRARFEEN2,171,827,290/%
RDPEEEREL ©
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On 30 December 2015, Achieve Prosper Capital Limited
transferred the 326,086,956 underlying Shares which are the
conversion Shares and are issuable upon the exercise of the
Convertible Bonds to Lushan Investment Holding Limited. During
the year ended 31 March 2018, the Convertible Bonds have
been fully converted and a total of 326,086,956 conversion
shares was allotted and issued, credited as fully paid to Lushan
Investment Holding Limited.

On 14 March 2016, Achieve Prosper Capital Limited entered
into a share charge with Lushan Investment Holding Limited,
pursuant to which Achieve Prosper Capital Limited has pledged
2,171,827,290 Shares in favour of Lushan Investment Holding
Limited. In addition, further 420,000,000 Shares held by Achieve
Prosper Capital Limited was transferred to Lushan Investment
Holding Limited pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement
entered by the Achieve Prosper Capital Limited and Lushan
Investment Holding Limited (please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated on 16 March 2016 for further details).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
recorded no other interests, short positions or long positions in
shares of the Company.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2017, the
Group had the following non-exempted continuing connected
transaction within the meaning of Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules:
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Framework Purchase Agreement

On 30 June 2014, SIH Limited (“Privateco”) and Treasure
Green Holdings Limited (a subsidiary of the Company) entered
into a framework purchase agreement (“the Framework
Purchase Agreement”), pursuant to which the Privateco and its
subsidiaries (“Privateco Group”) would sell and the Company
and the remaining subsidiaries upon completion of the Group
Restructuring and the distribution in specie and the creditors’
scheme becoming effective (“Remaining Group”) would purchase
certain electronic products in accordance with the terms of the
Framework Purchase Agreement. The relevant members of the
Remaining Group and the Privateco Group would from time
to time enter into individual agreements in respect of the sale
and purchase of the relevant electronic products. The initial
term of the Framework Purchase Agreement shall commence
from the date of completion of the distribution in specie (i.e.
30 June 2014) up to and including 31 March 2015. For further
information, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 30 June 2014 and the circular of the Company dated 24
May 2014

Since the expiration of the term of the Framework Purchase
Agreement on 1 April 2015, sale and purchase of electronic
products have been continuing among the Privateco Group and
the Remaining Group on the same terms of the Framework
Purchase Agreement. The Privateco Group and the Remaining
Group has entered into another framework purchase agreement
(the “2nd Framework Purchase Agreement”), pursuant to which
the Privateco Group will sell and the Remaining Group will
purchase certain electronic products from time to time for a
term commencing from 21 July 2015 and ending on 31 March
2018 on 16 September 2015. According to the 2nd Framework
Purchase Agreement, the annual caps in respect of the sale of
electronic products by the Privateco Group to the Remaining
Group shall not exceed (i) HK$56 million during the period from
21 July 2015 to 31 March 2016; (ii) HK$80 million during the
period from 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017; and (iii) HK$95
million during the period from 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018.

BEAERGE
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The transactions contemplated under the 2nd Framework
Purchase Agreement constituted continuing connected
transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules by virtue of the Privateco Group being an associate of the
Resigned Directors and thus a connected person of the Company
at the subsidiary level as at the date of the 2nd Framework
Purchase Agreement. Given (1) the Board has approved
transactions contemplated under the 2nd Framework Purchase
Agreement; and (2) the Directors (including all the Independent
Non-Executive Directors) confirmed that the terms of the 2nd
Framework Purchase Agreement are fair and reasonable, and
that the 2nd Framework Purchase Agreement are on normal
commercial terms and in the interests of the Company and
the Shareholders as a whole, the 2nd Framework Purchase
Agreement is subject to the announcement requirement under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules but is exempt from the circular
(including independent financial advice) and shareholders’
approval requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.101 of the Listing
Rules.

On 9 March 2016, the Privateco and Remaining Group entered
into a supplemental agreement (the “Supplemental Agreement”)
to amend the terms of the 2nd Framework Purchase Agreement.
As such, apart from the annual cap of the transactions
contemplated under the 2nd Framework Purchase Agreement for
the period from 21 July 2015 to 31 March 2016 was increased
from HK$56 million to HK$57 million, other terms of the 2nd
Framework Purchase Agreement remain unchanged.

As the 2nd Framework Purchase Agreement was expired on 31
March 2018, the Privateco and the Remaining Group entered
into the 3rd Framework Purchase Agreement on 29 March
2018. Purchase to the 3rd Framework Purchase Agreement, the
annual cap in respect of the sale and purchase of the electronic
products shall not exceed HK$18,000,000 during the period from
1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019. All other terms and conditions
remain unchanged.
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The annual cap and the actual transactions amount of the
transactions contemplated under the 2nd Purchase Framework
Agreement for the year ended 31 March 2018 are set out in the
table below:

E_OBEERGBETHRETZXIANBE_F
—NEZA=ZFT-RALFEZFELRRERRS
TRERTE -

Annual Cap
(For the period
from 1 April 2017

Amount to 31 March 2018)
FE LR
(ZZ—+5F
mA—B=E
—E-N\F
=A=+—*H
| 1EERRS)
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Purchase of electronic products from SIH ESIH Limited X B RARIBEMN
Limited and its subsidiaries (Note) BFEMME) 18,248 95,000

Note: Mr. Lau Sak Hong, Philip is a director of SIH Limited, who is also

a director of a subsidiary of the Company.

The amount of above transactions did not exceed the
corresponding annual cap for the period from 1 April 2017 to
31 March 2018 as announced by the Company. Pursuant to
Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company has engaged
ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited (the "Auditor”), the auditor
of the Company, to review the Group’s continuing connected
transactions entered into by the Company and its subsidiaries for
the period from 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018 in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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The Auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing its

findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected

transactions during the period from 1 April 2017 to 31 March

2018 disclosed above by the Group in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the Auditors’ letter has
been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange. The

conclusion contained in such letter is set out below:

a)

52

nothing has come to their attention that causes them
to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions have not been approved by the Company’'s
Board of Directors;

for transactions involving the provision of goods and
services by the Group, nothing has come to their
attention that causes them to believe that the transactions
were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the

pricing policies of the Group;

nothing has come to their attention that causes them
to believe that the transactions were not entered into,
in all material respects, in accordance with the relevant

agreement governing such transaction; and

with respect to the aggregate amount of the continuing
connected transaction set out above, nothing has come
to their attention that causes them to believe that
the disclosed continuing connected transactions have
exceeded the maximum aggregate annual cap as set by
the Company.
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The Independent Non-Executive Directors have reviewed the
transactions and the aforesaid Auditor’s letter and confirmed
that the continuing connected transactions have been entered

into:

a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
b) on normal commercial terms; and

) in accordance with the relevant agreement governing

such transaction on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the shareholders as a whole.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company, and within the knowledge of the directors, the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float not less than
25% of Company’s issued shares as required under the Listing
Rules throughout the year ended 31 March 2018.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

According to the Bye-laws, the Directors shall be indemnified
out of the funds of the Company against all liabilities incurred
by him as a Director in defending any proceedings, whether civil
or criminal, in which judgment is given in favour, or in which
he is acquitted, or in connection with any application under the
Companies Act in which relief from liability is granted to him by
the court.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the financial year
and up to the date of this Directors’ Report, there was or is,
any permitted indemnity provision being in force for the benefit
of any of the directors of the Company (whether made by the
Company or otherwise) or an associated company (if made by
the Company).
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ANNUAL CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received the annual confirmation of
independence from each of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors as required under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considered all Independent Non-Executive Directors to
be independent.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting of
the Company to re-appoint ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited as the
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Wang Jing
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong
29 June 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYRHETHRE

ol

ZHONGHUI

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA SINOSTAR GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Sinostar Group Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 62 to 179, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 March 2018, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2018, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “"HKICPA"”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

(i) Debtors, deposits and other receivables

Refer to Note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group tested the amount of debtors, deposits and
other receivables for impairment. This impairment test is
significant to our audit because the balance of debtors,
deposits and other receivables of HK$90,709,000 as at
31 March 2018 is material to the consolidated financial
statements. In addition, the Group’s impairment test
involves application of judgement and is based on
estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:
- Assessing the Group’s procedures on granting
credit limits and credit periods to customers and

debtors;

- Assessing the Group’s relationship and transaction
history with the customers and debtors;

- Evaluating the Group’s impairment assessment;

- Assessing ageing of the debts;

- Assessing creditworthiness of the customers and
debtors;

- Checking subsequent settlements from the
customers and debtors;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBERE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONT'D)

(i)

(i)

Debtors, deposits and other receivables (CONT'D)

- Assessing the subsequent usage of the
prepayments, deposits and other receivables; and

- Assessing the disclosure of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk in the consolidated financial statements.

We consider that the Group’s impairment test for debtors,
deposits and other receivables is supported by the
available evidence.

Properties for sale under development

Refer to Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group tested the amount of properties for sale under
development for impairment. This impairment test is
significant to our audit because the balance of properties
for sale under development of HK$138,129,000 as at
31 March 2018 is material to the consolidated financial
statements. In addition, the Group’'s impairment test
involves application of judgement and is based on

estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

- Evaluating the Group’s impairment assessment;

- Assessing the net realisable values of the properties
for sale under development;

- Assessing the business planning for the subsequent
development and net realisable value; and

- Checking input data to supporting evidence.
We consider that the Group’s impairment test for

properties for sale under development is supported by the
available evidence.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBERE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONT'D)

(iii)

58

Inventories

Refer to Note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group tested the amount of inventories for
impairment. This impairment test is significant to
our audit because the balance of inventories of
HK$77,354,000 as at 31 March 2018 is material to the
consolidated financial statements. In addition, the Group's
impairment test involves application of judgement and is
based on estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

- Assessing the Group's procedures on ordering and
holding of inventories;

- Evaluating the Group's impairment assessment;

- Assessing the ageing of the inventories;

- Assessing the net realisable values of the
inventories; and

- Checking subsequent sales and usage of the

inventories.

We consider that the Group’s impairment test for
inventories is supported by the available evidence.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBERE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONT'D)

(iv)

Property, plant and equipment

Refer to Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group tested the amount of property, plant and
equipment for impairment. This impairment test is
significant to our audit because the balance of property,
plant and equipment of HK$62,127,000 as at 31 March
2018 is material to the consolidated financial statements.
In addition,

application of judgement and is based on assumptions

the Group's impairment test involves

and estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

- Assessing the identification of the related cash
generating units;

- Assessing the arithmetical accuracy of the value-in-

use calculations;

- Comparing the actual cash flows with the cash
flow projections;

- Assessing the reasonableness of the key
assumptions (including revenue growth, profit
margins, terminal growth rates and discount rates);
and

- Checking input data to supporting evidence.
We consider that the Group’s impairment test for

property, plant and equipment is supported by the
available evidence.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBERE

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all the information in the
Company’s annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The other
information is expected to be made available to us after the date
of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we will not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBERE

AUDITOR’ S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements is located at the
HKICPA's website at: http://www.hkicpa.org.hk/en/standards-
and-regulations/standards/auditing-assurance/auditre/
This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wan Ho Yuen
Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number P04309

Hong Kong, 29 June 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

SEREREME2AEKER

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HEZT-N\F=ZA=1T—HIFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F Tt
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
s FHET FET
(Restated)
(&E75)
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BHEREER
REVENUE Ui & 8 518,038 462,025
Cost of sales SHE A (386,007) (345,069)
Gross profit EF 132,031 116,956
Other income =N 9 72 80
Distribution costs 7 S A AR (41,366) (43,260)
Administrative expenses T E R (89,434) (57,371)
Other gain and loss H s kAR 10 (18,875) (3,012)
Increase in fair value of wEMHEZ
investment properties AFEE N - 1,919
Finance costs B 75 A AR 11 (6,905) (12,248)
Impairment loss on goodwill B R EEE - (34,027)
Impairment loss on property, WE - WEKkEE
plant and equipment B EE - (2,935)
Impairment loss on investment in PR /N
an associate REEE - (3,751)
Share of profits of an associate JE {5 B 2N A vis A 364 662
LOSS BEFORE TAXATION BRI ATE B (24,113) (36,987)
Taxation FHIE 14 115 (10,100)
(23,998) (47,087)
DISCONTINUED OPERATION DRI REER
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRERBERIEEEEG
FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATION (E8) a A 16 (2,723) 8,081
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FEBEA 12 (26,721) (39,006)
Other comprehensive income/ FEHME2EBA(BAX)
(expense) for the year, net of tax: HRBE -
Items that may be reclassified to AEHIEFERZ
profit or loss: R
Exchange difference arising on REBINEBEEL
translation of foreign operations PE N E%E 15,458 (25,808)
Release of translation reserve upon ek DY =N
disposal of subsidiaries BREFEED 35,194 -
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ FEHM2EBRA(BX)
(EXPENSE) FOR THE YEAR, HBRBLIE
NET OF TAX 50,652 (25,808)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ FEZEHRAS
(EXPENSE) FOR THE YEAR (B ) 4% 23,931 (64,814)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR
LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

meRmkAEMEERER

For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE_FT—)\F=A=1T—HILFE

2018 2017
=E-N\F —E—+F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
s FHET FHET
(Restated)
(&&75)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR THATEEEE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: B (E5E):
Owners of the Company ARAEEBA
Loss from continuing operations REFELEEB BB (24,528) (54,136)
(Loss)/profit from discontinued KEDKRIEEEHEK 2
operation (E#8) &5 H (2,723) 8,081
Loss attributable to owners AAREEA
of the Company FEihEE (27,251) (46,055)
Non-controlling interests e
Profit from continuing operations REFEEEEB 2 R 530 7,049
Profit from discontinued operation RE DR IEEEE 25w - -
Profit attributable to owners FEREREAA
of non-controlling interests FEAL 5 R 530 7,049
(26,721) (39,006)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ TIHALEEFE
(EXPENSE) FOR THE YEAR 2EBA (X85
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Owners of the Company KABEEBA 23,483 (71,948)
Non-controlling interests RS 448 7,134
23,931 (64,814)
(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE SR(EER) ZF 17 HK$ cents HK$ cents
From continuing and discontinued HREZFERCRIELLEETR A AL
operations
— Basic and diluted —EARREE (0.71) (1.26)
From continuing operations REFELCEER
— Basic and diluted —HARREE (0.64) (1.48)
From discontinued operation RECKIEKEER
- Basic and diluted —HARR#E (0.07) 0.22
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

mE BRI R

As at 31 March 2018
R=ZF-N\F=A=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
ks FHET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investment properties wEME 18 22,620 206,477
Property, plant and equipment ME - MR NRERE 19 62,127 57,148
Goodwill (SRS 20 8,512 8,512
Interest in an associate NNl 22 3,767 3,703
Deferred tax assets REFTEE E 23 7,410 7,295
Long-term prepayments REATENRT K 25 - 455
Prepaid land lease payments TE LA E 26 46,916 44,374
151,352 327,964
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories T8 24 77,354 62,807
Debtors, deposits and other receivables EUERTE - &4 & E b fE W K18 25 90,709 243,395
Properties for sale under development ZEEHAFEME 27 138,129 -
Investments held for trading HIEEBEZRE 28 263 380
Amount due from a director FEUN & £ I8 29 68 -
Amounts due from related companies  f& U BaES: A B B 31 62 10,841
Bank balances and cash ﬁETTmﬁ%&fﬁbﬁ 32 50,930 34,442
357,515 351,865
CURRENT LIABILITIES hRBERE
Amount due to immediate holding e B IR A A
company 1B 30 22,083 33,344
Amount due to a director It E EHIB 30 9 172
Creditors and accrued charges FE R R EETEH 33 39,575 111,991
Amounts due to related companies FE{TREESE N B IA 34 25,876 36,100
Current tax liabilities 7;\L§M“RIEETE - 11,684
Borrowings EBE 35 3,925 20,477
Convertible bonds AR E A5 36 - 72,174
91,468 285,942
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 266,047 65,923
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT REERRDARE
LIABILITIES 417,399 393,887
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mRE M EIRR R

As at 31 March 2018
R=ZF-\EFE=A=+—H

2018 2017
“B-\F  —Ttf
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
ik FHExT FET
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEME
Amounts due to related companies XNz NGIE S 34 979 -
Borrowings BE 35 975 79,023
1,954 79,023
NET ASSETS EEZEE 415,445 314,864
CAPITAL AND RESERVES RA R (&1
Share capital A& 7R 37 39,768 36,507
Reserves fE1E 344,562 248,837
Equity attributable to owners RAREE ABGER
of the Company 384,330 285,344
Non-controlling interests PR 2 31,115 29,520
TOTAL EQUITY B 415,445 314,864
The consolidated financial statements on pages 62 to 179 were HROQ2EEN179ENBEEMBREREN_ZE—\F
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on NAZTNAEESRAEWEER S - WHAT

29 June 2018 and are signed on its behalf by:

Approved by:

IR
Wang Jing
CHAIRMAN

oy

KERFZF

IE®
Wang Xing Qiao
DIRECTOR
BE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

RERRBER

For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE_FT—)\F=A=1T—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RAFEEAEL
Convertible  Capital Non-
Share Share  Capital Translation bonds redemption Contributed Accumulated controlling
capital  premium*  reserve*  reserve*  reserve*  reserve*  surplus* losses*  Subtotal interests Total
B Ex
Bx ROEE* BAREG EXRE B5RE BERE BARN  ZHEE Nt FERER &t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
AR Thn Fitn T ThR T FiEn T Thn T T
At 1 April 2016 RoE-AE
TmA-A 36,507 252,315 [ 4,023 61,365 577,204 23909 (598,358) 357,136 2,141 378,877
Exchange difference  #EB)EHES
arising on translation  ZEXEE
of foreign operations - - - (25,893) - - - - (25893) 85 (25,808)
Loss/(profit) for the year £E &R/ (5H) - - - - - - - (46,0%5) (46,055 7,049 (39,006
Total comprehensive  £E2E(BX)/
(expense)fincome for W AEEE
the year - - - (25,893) - - - (46,055)  (71,948) 7,134 (64,814)
Deemed partial disposal 1B BHENE
of a subsidiary NABhER - - 156 - - - - - 156 (156) -
Capital contribution IR A FEER
from non-controlling ~ REFE
shareholders of a
subsidiary - - - - - - - - - 589 589
Recognition of equity- ANERLES
settled share-based R A
payments RAZE - - - - - - - - - 212 mn
At 31 March 2017 RIB-tE
ZA=1-H 36,507 252,315 327 (21,870) 61,365 577,204 23909 (644,413) 285,344 29520 314,864
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
RERSRERR

For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE_FT—)\F=A=1T—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

TAAEEAEE
Convertible  Capital Non-
Share Share  Capital Translation bonds redemption Contributed Accumulated controlling
capital  premium*  reserve*  reserve*  reserve*  reserve*  surplus* losses*  Subtotal interests Total
ik Ex
Bx RiEEr RARG EXRE B5EG BERE BARN  ZHEE Nt EERER &3t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
T ThR Tt T AR Thn Tt T ThAR T Tt
At 1 April 2017 RZE-+E
mA-A 36,507 252,315 327 (21,870) 61,365 577,204 23909 (644,413) 285,344 29520 314,864
Exchange difference  HEEN£H
arising on translation ~ E£ZEREE
of foreign operations - - - 15,540 - - - - 15,540 (82) 15458
Release of translation ~ HEMBEAAF
reserve upon disposal  BEREEH
of subsidiaries - - - 35,194 - - - - 35,194 - 35,194
Loss/(profit) for the year FEE#E/ (%7) - - - - - - - 1251 (27,251) 530 (26,721)
Total comprehensive ~ £E2E(H%)/
income/(expense) for A%
the year - - - 50,734 - - - (27,251) 23,483 448 23,931
Deemed partial disposal B AL ENE
of a subsidiary NABhER - - 503 - - - - - 503 (503) -
Capital contribution IERaFEER
from non-controlling ~ REE
shareholders of a
subsidiary - - - - - - - - - 1,650 1,650
Issue of shares upon BRTARESRR
conversion of ESiiu)
convertible bonds 3,261 133,104 - - (61,365 - - - 75,000 - 75,000
At 31 March 2018 RZE-N\F
ZA=1-H 39,768 385,419 830 28,864 - 577,204 23909 (671,664) 384,330 31,115 415,445
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves in the — * ZERBEREBRGAMBRAR ZGEEFHE -

consolidated statement of financial position.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RERTMER

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HEZT-N\F=ZA=1T—HIFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
ks FERT FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REFHEEZ
ACTIVITIES RERE
Loss before tax from continuing RECEEBEE L
operations FrE1 RIS 1B (24,113) (36,987)
(Loss)/profit before tax from BRIFEBEEZ
discontinued operation BRFL AT (E18), a7 (2,723) 19,540
Adjustments for: FE
Finance costs B 75 A AR 6,905 12,248
Decrease in fair value of investment BEWMEZ AFERD
properties 3,692 28,315
Depreciation of property, plant and W - BEMEEITE
equipment 6,316 6,097
Amortisation of prepaid land lease T8 4 & A R 8
payments 2,084 782
Allowance for doubtful debts RAREE 978 712
Allowance for obsolete and PRERBIETE 2 BE
slow-moving inventories 1,421 873
Share-based payments VAR 19 A Bt 2 1P 3R - 212
(Increase)/decrease in fair value of BIEBEEREANTEGEM)
investments held for trading ol (28) 71
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HE B A S (1,081) -
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary  =F 4B A AU (3) -
Gain on disposal of investment HEREYE NS
properties - (9,259)
Loss on disposal of property, LEME BELREEBE
plant and equipment - 370
Share of profits of an associate JE (R = A B (364) (662)
Interest income FEWA (26) (18)
Impairment loss on other receivables H fth & W BRI B B 18 3,490 -
Impairment loss on goodwill PR E E 18 - 34,027
Impairment loss on investment in an R—REEE AR ERAEEE
associate - 3,751
Impairment loss on property, WE  BEIREREESE
plant and equipment - 2,935
Dividend income from investments FIEEERE ZRBIA
held for trading - (9)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS
GEREREX

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HEZT-NF=ZA=1T—HIFE

2018 2017
—ZE-N\F T+
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
ik FHExT FET
Operating cash flows before REZESUHA 2 ELER S
movements in working capital mE (3,452) 62,998
Change in properties for sale under BRAFEMEZD
development (67,354) -
Change in inventories FEEH) (15,968) (9,381)
Change in debtors, deposits and other FEUERIE - 1R & & H i fE W RIB
receivables = E (56,250) (211,228)
Change in creditors and accrued JEBRIB R EETER# 8
charges 83,716 16,398
Cash used in operations BEFAZES® (59,308) (141,213)
Dividend income from investments held #{EEFRE Z KB A
for trading - 9
Taxation in other jurisdictions paid HipahERBENHIE - (416)
Net cash flows used in operating EEEE A ZIRSRE R
activities (59,308) (141,620)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REZDEEZRERE
ACTIVITIES
Dividend received from an associate B B2 B 2 BB 300 -
Interest received B R B 26 18
Refund of deposit paid for investments REDNIEEZ S - 106,714
Acquisition of a subsidiary Y iE — M E A A 39 (23,499) (14,751)
Settlement of consideration payable for #H FEEIWEHBE AT
acquisition of subsidiaries in previous ERRE
year - (19,613)
Purchase of investment properties BEIREME - (30,260)
Proceeds from disposal of investment  HEHREYEFFSHIA
properties - 23,611
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMB A A 16 93,730 -
Settlement of consideration receivable %2 H & B A 72 FEU K (E
from disposal of a subsidiary - 81,534
Proceeds from disposal of investment  H&EFEE SR EMSHRIA
held for trading 136 -
Purchase of prepaid land lease payments & & ¥& - +- st F & 1~ 3¢ - (45,156)
Repayment to immediate holding EBEREEREZERARRIA
company (11,261) (142,206)
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BE_FT—/\F=A=1+—HIFE

2018 2017
—ZE2-N\F Tt
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
ks FHET FET
Advance to related companies FE ARG A RIZRIA 1,534 25,259
Repayment to a director BERESNIA (231) -
Proceeds from deregistration of a LI —MEIM B A R TSR
subsidiary 3 -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BERREBFIEHRIA
plant and equipment - 492
Purchase of property, plant and BEWE  WBEKEHE
equipment (4,150) (12,203)
Net cash flows generated from/ BEEBHE (AR RE
(used in) investing activities RER 56,588 (26,561)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METHEEZRERE
ACTIVITIES
New borrowings raised MEEER 5,955 -
Capital contribution from B8 A R IR AR BT &
non-controlling shareholders of a
subsidiary 1,650 589
Repayment of borrowings EEHER - (20,403)
Interest on bank and other borrowings #8177 & E fh B 1< {8 Z R &,
paid (5,033) (14,572)
Convertible bonds interest paid BB ESF S (1,297) -
Net cash flows generated from/(used BEEEFE (FIA)RERE
in) financing activities FEE 1,275 (34,386)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH BERBESEEYRL FHE
EQUIVALENTS (1,445) (202,567)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FHRENIREEEW
of year 34,442 249,130
Net foreign exchange difference P 3 Z R F 5 17,933 (12,121)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of FREEREBELZEY
year 50,930 34,442
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH PMRERBASEEMHEH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank balances and cash wITHBREE 50,930 34,442
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018
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GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in
Bermuda with limited liability and its shares are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The immediate holding company of
the Company is Achieve Prosper Capital Limited, which
was incorporated in Samoa, and the ultimate holding
company of the Company is EEEE(EE)SHEMESR
fRZA "], which was established in the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC"). The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed
in the corporate information section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars which is also the functional currency
of the Company.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. Its principal subsidiaries are engaged in the
design and sale of a wide range of electronic products,
operation and management of hydroelectric power
stations, properties investment, properties development
and securities trading.

—REHR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
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72

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new
and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") that are relevant to its
operations and effective for its accounting year beginning
on 1 April 2017. HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”); Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS"); and Interpretations. The adoption of
these new and revised HKFRSs did not result in significant
changes to the Group’s accounting policies, presentation
of the Group’s financial statements and amounts reported
for the current year and prior years.

The Group has not applied the new HKFRSs that have
been issued but are not yet effective. The application of
these new HKFRSs will not have material impact on the
financial statements of the Group. The Group has already
commenced an assessment of the impact of these new
HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to state whether these
new HKFRSs would have a material impact on its results
of operations and financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M ERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE_FT—)\F=A=1T—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA, accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of investment properties and
investments held for trading which are carried at their fair

values.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain key
assumptions and estimates. It also requires the directors
to exercise its judgements in the process of applying
the accounting policies. The areas involving critical
judgements and areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to these consolidated financial statements,
are disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements are
set out below.

3.
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3.

74

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(a)

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31 March. Subsidiaries
are entities over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. The
Group has power over an entity when the Group
has existing rights that give it the current ability
to direct the relevant activities, i.e. activities that
significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers
its potential voting rights as well as potential
voting rights held by other parties, to determine
whether it has control. A potential voting right
is considered only if the holder has the practical
ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that
results in a loss of control represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration
of the sale plus the fair value of any investment
retained in that subsidiary and (ii) the Company’s
share of the net assets of that subsidiary plus
any remaining goodwill relating to that subsidiary
and any related accumulated foreign currency

translation reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M ERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE_FT—)\F=A=1T—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(a)

Consolidation (CONT'D)

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised
profits are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly,
to the Company. Non-controlling interests are
presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position and consolidated statement of changes in
equity within equity. Non-controlling interests are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between the non-controlling
shareholders and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
shareholders even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest
in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of
control are accounted for as equity transactions
(i.e. transactions with owners in their capacity as
owners). The carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by
which the non-controlling interests are adjusted
and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to the owners of the Company.
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3.

76

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(b)

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for
the acquisition of a subsidiary in a business
combination. The cost of acquisition is measured
at the acquisition-date fair value of the assets
given, equity instruments issued, liabilities incurred
and contingent consideration. Acquisition-related
costs are recognised as expenses in the periods in
which the costs are incurred and the services are
received. Identifiable assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at their
acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Company’s share of the net fair value of the
subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities is
recorded as goodwill. Any excess of the Company’'s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss as a gain
on bargain purchase which is attributed to the
Company.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest in the subsidiary
is remeasured at its acquisition-date fair value
and the resulting gain or loss is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss. The fair value is added
to the cost of acquisition to calculate the goodwill.

If the changes in the value of the previously held
equity interest in the subsidiary were recognised
in other comprehensive income (for example,
available-for-sale investment), the amount that
was recognised in other comprehensive income is
recognised on the same basis as would be required
if the previously held equity interest were disposed
of.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(b)

(c)

Business combination and goodwill (CONT'D)

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that it might be impaired. Goodwill is
measured at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. The method of measuring impairment losses
of goodwill is the same as that of other assets as
stated in the accounting policy below. Impairment
losses of goodwill are recognised in consolidated
profit or loss and are not subsequently reversed.
Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units that
are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition for the purpose of impairment testing.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary
are initially measured at the non-controlling
shareholders’ proportionate share of the net fair
value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets and
liabilities at the acquisition date.

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of an entity but is not control or
joint control over those policies. The existence and
effect of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible, including potential
voting rights held by other entities, are considered
when assessing whether the Group has significant
influence. In assessing whether a potential voting
right contributes to significant influence, the
holder’s intention and financial ability to exercise
or convert that right is not considered.
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3.

78

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(c)

Associates (CONT'D)

Investment in an associate is accounted for in
the consolidated financial statements by the
equity method and is initially recognised at cost.
Identifiable assets and liabilities of the associate
in an acquisition are measured at their fair
values at the acquisition date. The excess of the
cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The
goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the
investment and is tested for impairment together
with the investment at the end of each reporting
period when there is objective evidence that the
investment is impaired. Any excess of the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss.

The Group’s share of an associate’s post-acquisition
profits or losses is recognised in consolidated
profit or loss, and its share of the post-acquisition
movements in reserves is recognised in the
consolidated reserves. The cumulative post-
acquisition movements are adjusted against the
carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group's share of losses in an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in the associate, including any
other unsecured receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate. If the associate subsequently reports
profits, the Group resumes recognising its share
of those profits only after its share of the profits

equals the share of losses not recognised.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(c) Associates (CONT'D)

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate
that results in a loss of significant influence
represents the difference between (i) the fair value
of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value
of any investment retained in that associate and
(ii) the Group’s share of the net assets of that
associate plus any remaining goodwill relating to
that associate and any related accumulated foreign
currency translation reserve. If an investment in an
associate becomes an investment in a joint venture,
the Group continues to apply the equity method
and does not remeasure the retained interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the
Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interests in the associates.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

(d) Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong Dollars, which is the Company's
presentation currency and functional
currency.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(d) Foreign currency translation (CONT'D)

(i) Transactions and balances in each
entity’s financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are
translated into the functional currency
on initial recognition using the exchange
rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated at the exchange
rates at the end of each reporting period.
Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or
loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured
at fair values in foreign currencies are
translated using the exchange rates at the
dates when the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary
item is recognised in other comprehensive
income, any exchange component of
that gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a gain or loss
on a non-monetary item is recognised in
profit or loss, any exchange component of
that gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONT'D)

(d)

Foreign currency translation (CONT'D)

(iii)

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all
the Group entities that have a functional
currency different from the Company’s
presentation currency are translated into the
Company’s presentation currency as follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each
statement of financial position
presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

- Income and expenses are translated
at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated
at the exchange rates on the
transaction dates); and

- All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in the foreign currency
translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences
arising from the translation of the net
investment in foreign entities and of
borrowings are recognised in the foreign
currency translation reserve. When a foreign
operation is sold, such exchange differences
are recognised in consolidated profit or loss
as part of the gain or loss on disposal.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(d)

(e)

Foreign currency translation (CONT'D)

(iii)  Translation on consolidation (CONT'D)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising
on the acquisition of a foreign entity are
treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended

use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during

the period in which they are incurred.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(e)

(f)

Property, plant and equipment (CONT'D)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost
less their residual values over the estimated useful
lives on a straight-line basis. The estimated annual
rates are as follows:

Hydroelectric power stations and

related infrastructure 2-5%
Computer equipment 25%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10-25%
Leasehold improvement 3%
Motor vehicles 20-25%
Plant and machinery 5-30%

The residual values, useful life and depreciation
method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate,
at the end of each reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to
earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. An
investment property including property that is
being constructed or developed for future use
as investment property is measured initially at its
cost including all direct costs attributable to the

property.
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3.

84

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(f)

(9)

Investment properties (CONT'D)

After initial recognition, the investment property
is stated at its fair value based on valuation by an
external independent valuer. Gains or losses arising
from changes in fair value of the investment
property are recognised in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

Property that is being constructed or developed
for future use as investment property is stated at
cost less impairment losses until construction or
development is complete, at which time it is stated
at fair value. The difference between the fair value
and the previous carrying amount is recognised in
profit or loss.

The gain or loss on disposal of an investment
property is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the property,
and is recognised in profit or loss.

Leases

The Group as leasee
(i) Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer
to the Group all the risks and rewards of
ownership of assets are accounted for as
operating leases. Lease payments (net of
any incentives received from the lessor) are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line

basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M ERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE_FT—)\F=A=1T—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(9)

(h)

Leases (CONT'D)

The Group as leasor
(i) Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer
to the lessees all the risks and rewards
of ownership of assets are accounted for
as operating leases. Rental income from
operating leases is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

Properties for sale under development

Properties for sale under development are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs include acquisition costs, prepaid land lease
payments, construction costs, borrowing costs
capitalised and other direct costs attributable to
such properties. Net realisable value is determined
by reference to sale proceeds received after
reporting period less selling expenses, or by
estimates based on prevailing market condition.
On completion, the properties are reclassified to
properties held for sale at the carrying amount.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using weighted
average basis. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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3.

86

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

()

(k)

Recognition and derecognition of financial

instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the statement of financial position
when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the
contractual rights to receive cash flows from the
assets expire; the Group transfers substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
assets; or the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the assets but has not retained control on the
assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised
in other comprehensive income is recognised in

profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss.

Investments

Investments are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis where the purchase or sale of an
investment is under a contract whose terms require
delivery of the investment within the timeframe
established by the market concerned, and are
initially measured at fair value, plus directly
attributable transaction costs except in the case of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(k)

)

Investments (CONT'D)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are either investments classified as held for trading
or designated as at fair value through profit or
loss upon initial recognition. These investments
are subsequently measured at fair value. Gains or
losses arising from changes in fair value of these

investments are recognised in profit or loss.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market
and are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment. An allowance for impairment of trade
and other receivables is established when there is
objective evidence that the Group will not be able
to collect all amounts due according to the original
terms of receivables. The amount of the allowance
is the difference between the carrying amount of
the receivables and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition. The
amount of the allowance is recognised in profit or
loss.
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3.

88

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

0}

(m)

(n)

Trade and other receivables (CONT'D)

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent
periods and recognised in profit or loss when
an increase in the recoverable amount of the
receivables can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised,
subject to the restriction that the carrying amount
of the receivables at the date the impairment is
reversed shall not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents represent cash at
bank and on hand, demand deposits with banks
and other financial institutions, and short-
term highly liquid investments which are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and
subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.
Bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of

cash and cash equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are
classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument
is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for
specific financial liabilities and equity instruments
are set out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M ERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE_FT—)\F=A=1T—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(o)

(p)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred, and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months

after the reporting period.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds which entitle the holder to
convert the bonds into a fixed number of equity
instruments at a fixed conversion price are regarded
as compound instruments consist of a liability and
an equity component. At the date of issue, the fair
value of the liability component is estimated using
the prevailing market interest rate for similar non-
convertible debt. The fair value of any derivative
features embedded in the compound instruments is
included in the liability component. The difference
between the proceeds of issue of the convertible
bonds and the fair values assigned to the liability
component, representing the embedded option
for the holder to convert the bonds into equity of
the Group, is included in equity as capital reserve.
The liability component is carried as a liability at
amortised cost using the effective interest method
until extinguished on conversion or redemption.
The derivative components are measured at fair
value with gains and losses recognised in profit or
loss.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the
liability and equity components of the convertible
bonds based on their relative carrying amounts
at the date of issue. The portion relating to the
equity component is charged directly to equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE_FT—/\F=A=1+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(q) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost.

(r) Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct

issue costs.

(s) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and is
recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of

revenue can be measured reliably.

(i) Revenues from the sales of goods are
recognised on the transfer of significant
risks and rewards of ownership, which
generally coincides with the time when the
goods are delivered and the title has passed
to the customers.

(ii) Interest income from a financial asset is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life
of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M ERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE_FT—)\F=A=1T—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(s) Revenue recognition (CONT'D)

(iii) Dividend income from investments is
recognised when the Group’s right to
receive payment has been established.

(iv) Rental income is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

(1) Employee benefits

(i) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and
long service leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the

time of leave.

(i) Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined
contribution retirement schemes which are
available to all employees. Contributions to
the schemes by the Group and employees
are calculated as a percentage of employees’
basic salaries. The retirement benefit scheme
cost charged to profit or loss represents
contributions payable by the Group to the
funds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HEZT-N\F=ZA=1T—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(t) Employee benefits (CONT'D)

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at
the earlier of the dates when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs and involves the payment
of termination benefits.

(u) Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled and cash-settled
share-based payments to certain employees. Equity-
settled share-based payments are measured at the
fair value (excluding the effect of non market-
based vesting conditions) of the equity instruments
at the date of grant. The fair value determined at
the grant date of the equity-settled share-based
payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate
of shares that will eventually vest and adjusted for
the effect of non market-based vesting conditions.

(v) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(v)

(w)

Borrowing costs (CONT'D)

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally
and used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying
asset, the amount of borrowing costs eligible
for capitalisation is determined by applying a
capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that
asset. The capitalisation rate is the weighted
average of the borrowing costs applicable to the
borrowings of the Group that are outstanding
during the period, other than borrowings made
specifically for the purpose of obtaining a
qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the
profit or loss in the period in which they are

incurred.

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit
recognised in profit or loss because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

3.

EREFEE(E)

(v)

(w)

EERA(E)

WMEEZ-RENEBEA/ERE
BEREE AEBELRLZBEX
A FARAE RN KT EZ A
BEMAXZHEEE - EXNMLLE
REBARNKTEERZARKEERER
EZEBERAMEFHE ELE
BRERBEZEMNEERI

B B4 1 B A R 2 A A 4R
R -

BiI8

P E AR A MR 1R 2
A e

JE B BA AR TR 1R 4 1A JE RR 0 K A
E-BARTEEEMFEERNK
AHRBRASRFEIABE RIETRE

BREPRERENTRE - AKEZ

BRI R ERERE AREE ML
BER LRz B EETH -

SE-NFEH FEEREMARAT 93



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HEZT-N\F=ZA=1T—HIFE

3.

94

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(w)

Taxation (CONT'D)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences and deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses or unused tax credits can
be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(w)

Taxation (CONT'D)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax is
recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income

or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and
liabilities reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets

and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the carrying amounts of
such properties are presumed to be recovered
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted.
The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a
business model of the Group whose business
objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment
property over time, rather than through sale. If
the presumption is rebutted, deferred tax for such
investment properties are measured based on the
expected manner as to how the properties will be

recovered.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(w) Taxation (CONT'D)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when they relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority and the Group intends to
settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net
basis.

(x) Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related
to the Group.

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(iii) is @ member of the key management
personnel of the Company or of a
parent of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE_FT—)\F=A=1T—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONT'D)

(x) Related parties (CONT'D)

(b) An entity is related to the Group (reporting

entity) if any of the following conditions

applies:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

The entity and the Company are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group. If
the Group is itself such a plan, the
sponsoring employers are also related
to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a).
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3.

98

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(x)

(y)

Related parties (CONT'D)

(b) (CONT'D)

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

(viii)  The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to
the Company or to a parent of the
Company.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the
purpose of allocating resources to, and assessing
the performance of the Group’s various lines of

business in different geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of productions processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services,
and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(2)

Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets except goodwill, investment
properties, deferred tax assets, investments,
inventories and receivables to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of
any impairment loss. Where it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-
generating unit is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount,
in which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(2)

(aa)

Impairment of assets (CONT'D)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset or cash-
generating unit is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined
(net of amortisation or depreciation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset or
cash-generating unit in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried
at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal
of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation

increase.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation
is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow is
remote.
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BE_FT—)\F=A=1T—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(ab)

(ac)

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide
additional information about the Group’s position
at the end of the reporting period or those that
indicate the going concern assumption is not
appropriate are adjusting events and are reflected
in the financial statements. Events after the
reporting period that are not adjusting events are
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements

when material.

Discontinued operation

A discontinued operation is a component of the
Group, the operations and cash flows of which
can be clearly distinguished from the rest of the
Group and which represents a separate major line
of business or geographical area of operations, or
is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of
a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired
exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs
upon disposal or when the operation meets
the criteria to be classified as held for sale in
accordance with HKFRS 5, if earlier. It also occurs
when the operation is abandoned.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(ac)

Discontinued operation (CONT'D)

When an operation is classified as discontinued,
a single amount is presented in the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
which comprises:

- The post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation; and

- The post-tax gain or loss recognised on
the measurement to fair value less costs
to sell, or on the disposal, of the assets or
disposal group constituting the discontinued
operation.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the

directors have made the following judgements that have

the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in

the financial statements.

(a)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the directors have reviewed
the Group’s investment property portfolios and
concluded that the Group’s investment properties
are held under a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time, rather than through sale. Therefore,
in determining the Group’'s deferred tax for
investment properties, the directors have rebutted
the presumption that investment properties
measured using the fair value model are recovered
through sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M ERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE_FT—)\F=A=1T—HILFE

4. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (CONT'D)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed
below.

(a) Impairment of debtors, deposits and other
receivables

Impairment of debtors, deposits and other
receivables is made based on an assessment of
the recoverability of debtors, deposits and other
receivables. The assessment of impairment of
debtors, deposits and other receivables involves
the use of estimates and judgments. An estimate
for doubtful debts is made when collection of the
full amount is no longer probable, as supported
by objective evidence using available contemporary
and historical information to evaluate the
exposure. Bad debts are written off as incurred.
Where the actual outcome or expectation in the
future is different from the original estimates,
such differences will affect the carrying amount of
debtors, deposits and other receivables and thus
the impairment loss in the period in which such
estimate is changed.
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4. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (CONT'D)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (CONT'D)

(b)

(c)

Impairment of properties for sale under
development

Properties for sale under development are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
of the assets exceeds its net realisable value. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and selling expense. These estimates
are based on the current market condition and
the historical experience of constructing and
selling properties of similar nature. It could change
significantly as a result of changes in economics
and demand of market. The Group will reassess
the estimates by the end of each reporting period.

Allowances for inventories

The management of the Group reviews the
physical conditions and saleability of inventories
at the end of the reporting period, and makes
allowance for obsolete and slow-moving inventory
items identified that are no longer suitable for
use in production. The management estimates the
net realisable value for such finished goods and
consumables primarily based on the latest invoice
prices and current market conditions. As at 31
March 2018, the carrying amount of inventories
is HK$77,354,000 (2017: HK$62,807,000), net
of accumulated allowance for obsolete and slow-
moving inventories of HK$1,421,000 (2017:
HK$873,000).
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4. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (CONT'D)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (CONT'D)

(d)

(e)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group assesses annually whether property,
plant and equipment have any indication of
impairment, in accordance with the relevant
accounting policies. The recoverable amounts
of property, plant and equipment have been
determined based on value in use calculations.
These calculations and valuations require the use
of judgment and estimates on future operating
cash flows and discount rates adopted. Where the
actual cash flows are different from the original
estimate, a material change in the amount of
impairment may arise. As at 31 March 2018, the
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
is HK$62,127,000 (2017: HK$57,148,000), net of
accumulated impairment loss of HK$3,044,000
(2017: HK$3,044,000).

Fair values of investment properties

The Group appointed an independent professional
valuer to assess the fair values of the investment
properties. In determining the fair values, the
valuer has utilised a method of valuation which
involves certain estimates. The directors have
exercised their judgement and are satisfied that
the method of valuation is reflective of the current
market conditions.
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4. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (CONT'D)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (CONT'D)

(f)

(9)

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires
an estimation of the value in use of the cash-
generating units to which goodwill has been
allocated. The value in use calculation requires
the Group to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from the cash-generating units
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value. Where the actual cash flows
are less than expected, a material impairment
loss may arise. As at 31 March 2018, the carrying
amount of goodwill is HK$8,512,000 (2017:
HK$8,512,000), net of accumulated impairment
loss of HK$42,138,000 (2017: HK$42,138,000).
Details of the recoverable amount calculation are
disclosed in note 20.

Income taxes

As at 31 March 2018, the Group has unused tax
losses of HK$296,818,000 (2017: HK$303,134,000)
and no deferred tax asset was recognised in
the Group's consolidated statement of financial
position in relation to the estimated unused tax
losses of HK$243,602,000 (2017: HK$248,682,000)
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly
depends on whether sufficient future profits or
taxable temporary differences will be available in
the future. In cases where the actual future taxable
profits generated are more or less than expected,
a material recognition or reversal of deferred
tax asset may arise, which would be recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which such a

recognition or reversal takes place.
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5. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes the amounts due to immediate holding
company, a director and related companies, borrowings
and convertible bonds disclosed in notes 30, 34, 35 and
36, respectively net of cash and cash equivalents and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
regularly. As part of this review, the directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. The Group will balance its overall capital structure
through new share issues and share buy-backs as well as
the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial

risks: foreign currency risk, interest rate risk, price risk,

credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk

management programme focuses on the unpredictability

of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential

adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(a)

(b)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign
currency risk as most of its business transactions,
assets and liabilities are principally denominated in
the functional currencies of the Group entities. The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group will
monitor its foreign currency exposure closely and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

Interest rate risk

The Group was exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to note payable, borrowings and
convertible bonds. The management continuously
monitors interest rate exposure. These borrowings
bear interests at fixed rates.

At 31 March 2018, if interest rates at that date
had been 10 basis points lower with all other
variables held constant, consolidated profit after
tax for the year would have been HK$6,000
(2017: HK$172,000) higher, arising mainly as a
result of lower interest expense on note payable,
borrowings, and convertible bonds. If interest
rates had been 10 basis points higher, with all
other variables held constant, consolidated profit
after tax for the year would have been HK$6,000
(2017: HK$172,000) lower, arising mainly as a
result of higher interest expense on note payable,
borrowings, and convertible bonds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M ERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE_FT—)\F=A=1T—HILFE

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONT'D)

(c)

(d)

Price risk

The Group’s held-for-trading investments are
measured at fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The management manages this exposure
by maintaining a portfolio of investments with
different risk profiles. Therefore, the Group has

minimal exposure to price risk.

Credit risk

The carrying amount of the cash and bank
balances, trade and other receivables and amounts
due from a director and related companies included
in the statement of financial position represents
the Group’'s maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation to the Group’s financial assets.

It has policies in place to ensure that sales are
made to customers with an appropriate credit
history. Amounts due from a director and related
companies are closely monitored by the directors.

The credit risk on cash and bank balances is
limited because the counterparties are banks with
high credit-ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies.

In order to minimise credit risk, the directors
have delegated a team to be responsible for the
determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures. In addition,
the directors review the recoverable amount of
each individual trade debt regularly to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are recognised for
irrecoverable debts. In this regard, the directors
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE_FT—/\F=A=1+—HIFE

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONT'D)

(d)

(e)

Credit risk (CONT'D)

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by
geographical locations is mainly in USA (2017:
PRC). The trade debtors located in USA (2017:
PRC) accounted for 28% (2017: 92%) of the
Group's total trade debtors as at 31 March 2018.
The Group also has concentration of credit risk by
customers as 18% (2017: 32%) and 42% (2017:
95%) of the total trade debtors was due from
the Group’s largest customer and the five largest
customers, respectively. In the opinion of the
directors, all five largest customers are customers

with good reputation and creditability.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the
Group monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group's operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of
borrowings.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities.
The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The table includes both interest
and principal cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M ERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE_FT—)\F=A=1T—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. UHEMEEE)
(CONT’D)
(e) Liquidity risk (CONT'D) (e) FHEBESEAKE)
Repayable
on demand Total
Effective or within undiscounted Carrying
2018 —E-N\F interest rate 1 year 1 -2 years cash flow amounts
RERS KR
BERAZE  SMEEER 1-26  RER2LE RE®
% HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
TER TR TR TR
Creditors and accrued charges [EfTBRIB T Est B - 39,575 - 39,575 39,575
Amount due to immediate  ER EEERAF
holding company HE - 22,083 - 22,083 22,083
Amounts due to related [ERB®ARZE
companies 6% 26,071 990 27,061 26,855
Amount due to a director EREZHE - 9 - 9 9
Borrowings EE 5.45% 4,138 1,081 5,219 4,900
91,876 2,071 93,947 93,422
Repayable
on demand Total
Effective or within undiscounted Carrying
2017 “Ztf interest rate 1 year 1 -2 years cash flow amounts
REXH REH
ERME  DMEEER 1-25  Baiglg FEE
% HK$"000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FHL T THT THET
Creditors and accrued charges [ER BRI RE B - 111,991 - 111,991 111,991
Amount due to immediate ERERERAR
holding company EE - 33,344 - 33,344 33,344
Amounts due to related e AR A RIE
companies - 36,100 - 36,100 36,100
Amount due to a director EES ¢ - 172 - 172 172
Borrowings BE 10.0% 26,893 86,361 113,254 99,500
Convertible bonds HRRES 16.2% 79,372 - 79,372 72,174
287,872 86,361 374,233 353,281
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE_FT—)\F=A=1T—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. HMEEABRERE(E)
(CONT’D)
(f) Categories of financial instruments (f) SRIAENER
At 31 March
R=RA=+—H
2018 2017
—E-NEF —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Financial assets: EWMEE -
Investments held for trading #{EEEZKE 263 380
Loans and receivables BERNERZE(BERE X
(including cash and cash BE&EEY)
equivalents) 141,769 288,678
142,032 289,058
Financial liabilities: SRaE
Financial liabilities at amortised IZ# 4k NFEE 2 SR B &
cost 93,422 353,281
93,422 353,281

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The following disclosures of fair value
measurements use a fair value hierarchy that categorises
into three levels the inputs to valuation techniques used
to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Group
can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

112 China Sinostar Group Company Limited Annual Report 2018

AV EE
RFETRAFTERM S 0E 7 FETH
BEFR5THEEEXXNEBARMNE
e ATHEREZ A FEAEDERS /=
EERNDFEBRNMGEETE - UFHER
FE

—RBA  AEERFERUESHHERE
EXBERNEETS ZRECREHE)

“RBAC BRR-RBARERN B
SEEERAREELRENAEBEENGA
iR -

=RBA BEXBENTABEG AR
o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M ERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE_FT—)\F=A=1T—HILFE

transfer.

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONT'D) 7. AFEFE(E
The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and REEZBETDREIESHHEREEME
transfers out of any of the three levels as of the date BEPEHARER-FAFHR 2 BANE AR
of the event or change in circumstances that caused the B o
(a) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at (a) R-ZE-NE=ZA=+—-HBHFHE
31 March 2018: ZAFEER
Fair value measurements using: Total
ARAFEE @gt
Description H1E Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2018
EF— - F=H —E-N\HF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FERT FET FHExT
Recurring fair value BEMATETE
measurements:
Financial assets at fair value 1ZATEFABZZ
through profit or loss TWMEE
Listed securities in BELMES
Hong Kong 2 - - 2
Listed securities outside EBLASN FTHE S
Hong Kong 261 - - 261
Investment properties REME
Commercial - PRC EE - E - - 22,620 22,620
Total recurring fair value EEMQAFEHE
measurements A 263 - 22,620 22,883
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE_FT—)\F=A=1T—HIFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONT'D)

(a) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at
31 March 2018: (CONT'D)

7. AVEFE(E)
() R-B-NF=A=+-AFHE
ZAPEER ()

Fair value measurements using: Total
ARAFETE st
Description B3] Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2017
E—R F-H B —T—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TAET TET TET
Recurring fair value BEUDNTETE
measurements:
Financial assets at fair value RAFETABEZ
through profit or loss CTREE
Listed securities in Hong ERELTES
Kong 139 - - 139
Listed securities outside BRI LTS
Hong Kong 241 - - 241
Investment properties REME
Commercial - PRC BE—HE - - 206,477 206,477
Total recurring fair value &EHAFEE
measurements fke 380 - 206,477 206,857
There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3 M FERERE— = ZRLFESEHR

fair value measurements in both years.

114 China Sinostar Group Company Limited Annual Report 2018

DEZEITEELEEE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M ERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE_FT—)\F=A=1T—HILFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONT'D) 1.

(b)

DRFEFE(E)

Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value (b) REZF=HLWAULAFEFEZE
based on level 3: EYHER:
Investment
properties Total
Description A Level 3 2018
REME #Et
F=H —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&T FHET
At 1 April 2017 R-ZE—tFMA—H 206,477 206,477
Purchases BE - -
Total gains or losses recognised in RIBZmPERZEFHEBETEH)
profit or loss (#) (3,692) (3,692)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 16) HEK B AR (MEE16) (192,681)  (192,681)
Exchange realignment ERFE 12,516 12,516
At 31 March 2018 R=ZZB-NF=ZA=+—H 22,620 22,620
(#) Include gains or losses for assets (#)ERENRBEHRFAIZEENBRH N/A N/A
held at end of reporting period [ gi=] TiE A FEA
Investment
properties Total
Description S Level 3 2017
WEME HEt
B —T—LF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
At 1 April 2016 RZZE—RNFMNA—H 208,631 208,631
Purchases BE 53,261 53,261
Total gains or losses recognised in RiBa R 2 m FIsk B AR R (#)
profit or loss (#) (28,315) (28,315)
Disposal HE (14,352) (14,352)
Exchange realignment IE R 2 (12,748) (12,748)
At 31 March 2017 RZZE—tF=A=+—H 206,477 206,477
(#) Include gains or losses for assets  (#)BIERREHKRAEFHEER G
held at end of reporting period &5 18 (28,315) (28,315)

The total gains or losses recognised in profit or loss
including those for assets held at end of reporting
period are presented in decrease in fair value of
investment properties in the consolidated statement

51 o

of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

RS B R 1R & P FERR RO M 3 B 1R 4 FE
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
HEZT-N\F=ZA=1T—HIFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONT'D)

(c)

Disclosure of valuation process used by the
Group and valuation techniques and inputs
used in fair value measurements at 31 March
2018:

The Group’s financial controller is responsible for
the fair value measurements of assets and liabilities
required for financial reporting purposes, including
level 3 fair value measurements. The financial
controller reports directly to the Board of Directors
for these fair value measurements. Discussions of
valuation processes and results are held between
the financial controller and the Board of Directors
at least twice a year.

For level 3 fair value measurements, the Group
will normally engage external valuation experts
with the recognised professional qualifications and
recent experience to perform the valuations.

Key unobservable inputs used in level 3 fair value
measurements are mainly:

- Price per square meter (using market direct
comparable and taking into account of
location and other individual factors, such
as road, frontage, size of property etc.)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M ERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE_FT—)\F=A=1T—HILFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONT'D) 1.

(c)

Group and valuation techniques and inputs
used in fair value measurements at 31 March

2018: (CONT'D)

Disclosure of valuation process used by the

AFEFE(E
(c) R-ZEBE-NFE=ZA=+-—H ' &&

BEAZEERARRARAFEZ
FFEMERMREARE (8)

Level 3 fair value measurements E=/ATFEFE
Effect on
fair value for
Valuation Unobservable increase of Total
Description technique inputs Range inputs 2018
WARBE MY @t
#E ERE TABEHAHE gE N FEzZTE “E-N\F
HK$'000
TER
Completed commercial properties Direct comparison (i) Price per RMB19,718 Increase 22,620
method square meter to RMB27,778
EERBEANE =8 34595 ()BT HKER AR#19,718T #10
ZEARY27,7787%
Effect on
fair value for
Valuation Unobservable increase of Total
Description technique inputs Range inputs 2017
BABURIE I st
1B (EYI=Wiz3 TABREANE #E ATEIYE —E+F
HK$'000
THx
Commercial properties under Direct comparison (i) Adjusted 5% -25% Increase 168,546
construction in Liaoning method factor on retail
potential
MREZE EREANE BENRE (\ZEENAE 2
R
(i) Adjusted factor 5% - 25% Increase
on accessibility
(NEEEERZ il
FH
Completed commercial properties  Direct comparison (i) Price per square RMB18,333  Increase 20,433
method meter to RMB32,500
BERKERME BRLBA (VT ARER AR®18,333L &N
FARE32,5007T
Direct comparison (i) Price per square RMB8,889 Increase 17,498
method meter to RMB14,286
BERLBEA (VT RER AR¥8,8897T N

During the two years, there were no changes in

the valuation techniques used.

ZANRH14,28670

1t -
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HEZT-N\F=ZA=1T—HIFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the executive directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker, for
the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance focuses on types of goods delivered
by each operating division.

The Group's operating divisions are as follows:

(1) Design and sale of electronic products
(representing consumer electronic audio and video
equipment, karaoke equipment and accessories)
("Electronic products business”)

(2) Operation and management of hydroelectric power
stations (“Hydroelectric power business”)

(3) Properties investment

(4) Properties development

(5) Securities trading

Discontinued operation represented sales and installation
of elevators and part of the properties investment
business of Tong Sheng Yuan Holdings Limited, Tong
Sheng Yuan Limited and Benxi Tong Sheng Yuan Shiya
Company Limited (together referred to as “TSY Group”),
which ceased to be subsidiaries of the Group upon
disposal of TSY Group on 26 September 2017. (note16)
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BE_FT—)\F=A=1T—HILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT'D) 8. DEEM(E
(a) Segment revenue and results (a) SDEWRERFESE
An analysis of the Group’s revenue, which mainly BREAEBERRLEEDRE D 2
represents sales of goods, and results by reportable =(TEELEER) REESTT
and operating segments is as follows: I
For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE-2-N\FZA=t-BLEE
Continuing operations
FEOEER
Electronic Hydroelectric
products power  Properties  Properties  Securities Discontinued
business business  investment development trading Subtotal  operation Total
EtER BAL
% kSRR NERE NEEE E5EE Nt BEEH 3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tin Tén Tién Tén Tén Tin Tén Tén
TURNOVER X% 512,115 5,185 738 - - 518,038 - 518,038
SEGMENT RESULTS NREE (1,729) 630 (2,471) (388) 19 (3,939) (3,808) (7,747)
Interest income fl8dgE 25 1 26
Unallocated expenses APERY (13,658) - (13,658)
Share of profits of an EEBELR
associate gl 364 - 364
Gain on deregistration of a  HH#HBAF
subsidiary Wz - 3 3
Gain on disposal of HEHBAT
subsidiaries W - 1,081 1,081
Finance costs BB (6,905) - (6,905)
Loss before taxation BimRESR (24113) (2723)  (26,836)
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
HE-_T-\F=ZA=1—HItFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’'D)
(a) Segment revenue and results (CONT'D)

8.

TREN(E
(a) 2R M)

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BHE-Z-tF=-A=1+-HLEE

Continuing operations

BEEZEY
Electronic  Hydroelectric
products power Properties Securities Discontinued
business business  investment trading Subtotal operation Total
EfEm B
£% KEEH NERE BHEE Pt mexh &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT ThT ThT ThT ThT ThT THT
TURNOVER EE L 457,858 4,167 - - 462,025 169,990 632,015
SEGMENT RESULTS ~ piE%E 8,313 419 (5,034) 17 3,715 10,273 13,988
Interest income S e 10 8 18
Unallocated expenses A2 EFX (29,126) - (29,126)
Share of profits of an JEfREEZ 1N A
associate pagil 662 - 662
Gain on disposal of ~ HERENE
investment property Y - 9,259 9,259
Finance costs B R (12,248) - (12,248)
Loss before taxation B FAIE#E (36,987) 19,540 (17,447)

120 China Sinostar Group Company Limited Annual Report 2018



For the year ended 31 March 2018
HE-_T-\F=A=1—HItFE

8.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT'D)

(b)

Segment assets and liabilities

An analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by

reportable and operating segments is as follows:

8. DEER(

(b)

==
(=]

=

TREERAE

RN 5 [ /] B AR

RENBEDZE

ERBEITWT :

For the year ended 31 March 2018

RZE-NEZA=1-H
Continuing operations
KELEEY
Electronic Hydroelectric
products power  Properties  Properties  Securities Discontinued
business business  investment development trading Subtotal  operation Total
EFEm AL
£ KEEH  DERE NERE R5EE Nt BEER &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL TER TR TEn TERL TERL Tén TERL
ASSETS 2z
Segment assets HBEE 139,016 48,740 106,138 138,224 263 432,381 - 432,381
Unallocated corporate assets X3 RAFIEE 76,486
Consolidated total assets ~ AF#4E 508,867
LIABILITIES B&
Segment liabilities PRAE 35,637 6,299 2,286 988 - 45,210 - 45,210
Unallocated corporate AORLATARE
liabilities 48,212
Consolidated total liabilities Azt#&E 93,422
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT'D)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (CONT'D)

8.

(b) HEAERBMEE)

For the year ended 31 March 2017

RZZ—+5=A=1-H

Continuing operations

HEOEER
Electronic  Hydroelectric
products power Properties Securities Discontinued
business business investment trading Subtotal operation Total
ETEM BEE
% KEXR NERE BHEE NG S 3 b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FEL FEL FEL FEL FEL FEL
ASSETS BE
Segment assets PREE 117,862 83,167 91,127 380 292,536 375,310 667,846
Unallocated corporate RABARIEE
assets 11,983
Consolidated total ~ &3HEEE
assets 679,829
LIABILITIES 1
Segment liabilities ~ PEEE 16,675 4,359 51,293 - 72,327 108,156 180,483
Unallocated corporate KB ARIERE
liabilities 184,482
Consolidated total ~ A #EE
liabilities 364,965

Unallocated corporate assets mainly represent
interest in an associate, deferred tax assets and

bank balances and cash.

Unallocated corporate liabilities mainly represent
amount due to immediate holding company,

borrowings and convertible bonds.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
HE-_T-\F=A=1—HItFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT'D) 8. ZDHWER(E
(c) Other segment information (c) HibpEEH

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HE-E-NFZR=t-RALEE

Continuing operations

KELEEY
Electronic Hydroelectric
products power  Properties  Properties  Securities Discontinued
business business  investment development trading Subtotal  operation Total
EtEm AL

o OKSRE NRRE NERY EREE N EERE it
HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TER TRR TER TERL TER TER TERL TER

Amounts included in the  MANEEET
measurement of seqment  HHEEEE
results or segment assets: 2 308 :

Additions of property, plant £E#9% - KR

and equipment Rk 2,008 - 2,086 - - 4,094 - 4,094
Decrease in fair value of % Z9£70%

investment properties e - - - - - - 3,692 3,692
Bad debts written off ZEmE 24,989 - - - - 24,989 - 24,989
Allowance for doubtful debts &% & & 978 - - - - 978 - 978
Impairment loss on other  EftEUFUER

receivables EER 3,490 - - - - 3,490 - 3,490
Depreciation of property, ~ #1% - BER:H

plant and equipment BE 1,716 2,876 398 - - 4,990 - 4,990
Allowance for obsolete and BERFEFE

slow-moving inventories & 1,421 - - - - 1,421 - 1,421
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8.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’D)

(c)

Other segment information (CONT'D)

8.

(€ HitpEER(E)

For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-T-t5=A=1T-HI5E

Continuing operations

SEMEEH
Electronic  Hydroelectric
products power Properties Securities Discontinued
business business  investment trading Subtotal operation Total
EfEm B
% KERH nERE EHEE Pt BEXHB @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL THL THL THL THL THL THL
Amounts included in  AAZEREHS
the measurement of ~ PAZER EZ
—
segment results or R
segment assets:
Additions of property, £&%% - HE
plant and equipment B3t/ 1,156 1,098 6,209 - 8,463 - 8,463
Additions of property, UENEZARE
plant and equipment A &%1% -
arising from FRaREE
acquisition of a
subsidiary - 16,638 - - 16,638 - 16,638
Additions of investmentFE % & #%
properties - - 53,261 - 53,261 - 53,261
(Increase)/decrease  RENEZ AL
in fair value of fBEm) /A
investment properties % - - (1,919) - (1,919 30,234 28,315
Allowance for doubtful R B/
debts 712 - - - 712 - 712
Depreciation of nE - BERR
property, plant and  (&#7E
equipment 1,294 3,235 - - 4,529 - 4,529
Allowance for obsolete & R &1 &
and slow-moving 2R
inventories 873 - - - 873 - 873
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT'D)

(c)

(d)

8. 2EERE)

Other segment information (CONT'D) (c) HappBER(E)
Amounts regularly provided to the chief EHEMTEFELERREBRRN
operating decision maker but not included in the ADBEBI DB EENEZNRE
measurement of segment results or segment assets: U
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interest in an associate NEtE N T 7 xS 3,767 3,703
Share of profits of an associate i {554 2 &% 7 364 662
Finance costs B ISR AR (6,905) (12,248)
Geographical segments (d H#HESE

The Group's operations are located in United
States of America (“USA"), Canada, Europe, Hong
Kong (place of domicile), People’s Republic of
China (“PRC") and other countries.

ARBEZEBOIHREFNEARE
(@) - EX - BN FEE
EHB) - PEARKMB([HE])
REMBIR
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT'D)
(d) Geographical segments (CONT'D)

The Group's revenue from external customers (based

on location of customers) and information about

its non-current assets by geographical location of

the assets are detailed below:

8.

(d) HESEE)

AEBERBIBEL 2WE(BREP
FrER) R BEREERBHEEEHR
(REEMEME) ZFBWT ¢

Revenue from external customers

RENBEF 2 W@
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Continuing operations: FEREER
USA EH 438,672 389,093
Canada JIEWN 42,594 46,491
Europe B M 29,589 22,114
PRC =R 5,923 4,167
Other countries Hofh B 5% 1,260 160
518,038 462,025
Discontinued operation: BRI RS
PRC [ - 169,990
518,038 632,015
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(d)

(e)

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT'D) 8. SEER(E
Geographical segments (CONT'D) (d HESEE)
Non-current assets (note)
FERBEE (MEE)
2018 2017
—EB-NF —T—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Continuing operations: FEREET
USA ESE 12,024 22,006
Hong Kong &5 6,017 25,116
Canada N - 65
PRC A 125,901 87,439
143,942 134,626
Discontinued operation: BRIEEEEK
PRC A - 186,043
143,942 320,669
Note: Non-current assets excluded deferred tax assets. MeE : IERBEETRBEEHRIBEEE -
Information about major customers (e) FEEFEH
Revenue from customers of the corresponding FHFENAREBEBEWA10%LA
years contributing over 10% of the total revenue ZEPW =T
of the Group are as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
ks FET FHET
Customer A ZEFEA 161,995 97,475
Customer B ZFB (i) 68,991 N/A
i A
Customer C BPEC (i) 53,610 N/A
T3 A
Note: (i) The corresponding revenue did not SR () HEKSEAEERSE

contribute over 10% of the total sales of
the Group for the relevant years.

BEEzBKETEB
#10% °
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9. OTHER INCOME 9. HftslgA
2018 2017
—ZE-N\F ZT—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Other income comprise: Hlk A B -
Dividend income from investments held ##H{EEZHRE Z KLU A
for trading - 9
Interest income F B S 26 18
Others Hh 46 64
72 91
Representing: ¥ -
- Continuing operations —RBEREER 72 80
- Discontinued operation (note 16) — BRI EEB(HEE16) - 11
72 91
10. OTHER GAIN AND LOSS 10. HtlhzmRGE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Other gain/(loss) comprise: s (BE)eE
Exchange gain/(loss), net PEN Mz, (B8 - JF58 7,064 (2,229)
Allowance for doubtful debts RIREE (978) (712)
Bad debts written off AR (24,989) -
Increase/(decrease) in fair value of FIEEEZREZANE
investments held for trading #n R 28 (71)
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary 3T #4ME A &)U 3 -
Gain on disposal of investment HEREMEWET
properties - 9,259
(18,872) 6,247
Representing: ¥ -
- Continuing operations —RHECEER (18,875) (3,012)
- Discontinued operation (note 16) — BRI EB(HEE16) 3 9,259
(18,872) 6,247
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11. FINANCE COSTS 1. BB
2018 2017
—ZE2-N\F —EF—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Interest expenses on: FEBMAX :
— borrowings —EE 5,033 12,152
— convertible bonds — AR EAS 4,123 10,031
- note payable —ENER 402 164
Less: Amount capitalised to investment & : fEEIRE Y
properties under construction B AL FRIR (2,653) (10,099)
6,905 12,248
Representing: ¥
- Continuing operations —FEEEEE 6,905 12,248
- Discontinued operation (note 16) — BRI EEE (ME16) - -
6,905 12,248
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12. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 12. FEBE
The Group's loss for the year is arrived at after charging/ AEBFEBBZFENR (GTA):
(crediting):
2018 2017
—E-NF —ET—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBT FHET
Continuing operations: FEREET
Cost of inventories sold HEFERA 386,007 345,069
Staff costs (including directors’ EIXRA(BIEESRNE):
remuneration):
Wages and salaries IENEHS 32,214 28,107
Pension scheme contributions RIRET B
— Defined contribution scheme — EREHEREE 592 480
Share-based payments VAR 15 B E T M9 15 31 - 212
32,806 28,799
Auditors’ remuneration ZE A& 2,427 2,321
Exchange (gain)/loss, net N (z), B8 - T8 (7,064) 2,229
Depreciation of items of property, plant ¥%¥ - BE MR EITE
and equipment 6,316 6,097
Allowance for obsolete and slow-moving [ & & & 8477 & ~ B4 (5T A
inventories (included in cost of sales) PHERA) 1,421 873
Bad debts written off = AR AR 24,989 -
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TEAT L b 70 E A Sk 8
payments 2,084 782
Allowance for doubtful debts REREME 978 712
Impairment loss on other receivables H i e I FE 2 B E 1R 3,490 -
Impairment loss on goodwill e REEE - 34,027
Impairment loss on property, plant and %% - = M RE 2 REEE
equipment - 2,935
Impairment loss on investment in an KA E QT2 REEE
associate - 3,751
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEW¥ - KENMREEIE
equipment - 370
Minimum lease payments under HRUTEELEROIN 2R
operating lease in respect of EHE
- Land and buildings — T RETF 11,729 6,109
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BE_FT—)\F=A=1T—HILFE

12. LOSS FOR THE YEAR (CONT'D) 12. FEBR(E
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Discontinued operation: BARIEREER .
Cost of inventories sold HEFERAN - 124,154
Gain on disposal of investment properties &% & 1) % U 25 - (9,259)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEM B AR W (1,081) -
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary  sF#HMH B QR (3) -
Minimum lease payments under EUATEELERNINZ&
operating lease in respect of EHEE
- Land and buildings — T RETF - 4

13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 13. EERTANESFMALTEE
INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors and chief executive (a) EERTHAR

For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE-Z-\F=ZA=+—HLFE

Salaries

and other  Retirement

short term benefits
employee scheme Total
Fees benefits contributions emoluments

HEREM RREF
We EHESEA R e B
Notes  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

k3 FHER FER FTAERT FTAERT
Executive directors: HITES
Wang Jing T - 1,133 - 1,133
Wang Xing Qiao TES - 960 - 960
Zhao Shuang B - - - -
Independent non- BYEHTES:
executive directors:
Wang Ping FF - 300 - 300
Cheng Tai Kwan, Sunny #(K$5 - 300 - 300
Song Wenke R (iii) - 118 - 118
- 2,811 - 2,811
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID

INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (CONT’D)

(a) Directors and chief executive (CONT'D)

B.%ﬁ&ﬂ&m%ﬁMAiMQ

(a) EERTHRARE)

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE-Z—tF=A=+—HIFE

Salaries
and other  Retirement
short term benefits
employee scheme Total
Fees benefits contributions emoluments
FaekHEM RRAEA
e BHEEER FTEIftR B PR
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5F FAET FET FET FAET
Executive directors: #I{TEE :
Wang Jing T & - - - -
Wang Xing Qiao TES - 62 - 62
Chen Wan Jin REE (i) - - - -
Zhao Shuang B - - - -
Non-executive FEITESE
director:
Li Jun >E (if) - - - -
Independent non- BYIERITES -
executive directors:
Yang Xin Hua 15 # (i) - 80 - 80
Wang Ping TF - 300 - 300
Cheng Tai Kwan, Sunny #8:X 45 - 300 - 300
Song Wenke RIE (iii) - 115 - 115
- 857 - 857
Notes: B 5 -
() Resigned on 6 July 2016 (i) R-ZB—RE+ANBBRE

(i) Resigned on 31 August 2016

(iii) Appointed on 6 July 2016
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
HE-_T-\F=A=1—HItFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (CONT'D)

(a)

Directors and chief executive (CONT'D)

No performance related incentive payments were
paid to the directors of the Company for both
years.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services in connection with
the management of the affairs of the Company
and the Group. The emoluments of the non-
executive directors shown above were mainly for
their services as directors of the Company or its
subsidiaries. The emoluments of the independent
non-executive directors shown above were mainly
for their services as directors of the Company.

Neither the chief executive nor any of the directors
waived any emoluments in both years.

13. EERANESHFMALHE

(#&)
(a)

EERTHRARGE)

BERNZMEFERAARAEES
FHEIAE BEER S 3K -

LM ATEEFTHEIERRES
EEARRNBRAKEEHAEHRR
BHME - LAMIIFRITERS
MEBRREERARARNEKE
AREFRERURBOME - Larr
JIBLFATESHHEIBZRARS
ERARBEZMBHERBEOME -

RMEFER  BEETBTRAR
KEFHEMS
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 13.
INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (CONT’D)

(b) Five highest paid individual emoluments

The five highest paid individuals of the Group

included two (2017: zero) directors, details of

whose remuneration are set out above. The

emoluments of the remaining three (2017: five)

%ﬁ%&ﬂ&m%iﬂiﬂki@ﬂ%

(b) EHEBSFMzAL

AEELEESFM AL EEM
#(ZE—EF ER)EZFE A
BEMSZFBERLEXHE - H
H=-B(ZT—tF: AR)RSH

highest paid employees are as follows: EEZMEenT :
2018 2017
—E-NEF —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Salaries and other short term ¥4 R EME HEE 27
employee benefits 9,952 3,439
Retirement benefits scheme  RREFIETEI4E 2%
contributions - 16
9,952 3,455
Emoluments of these employees were within the hEREEMES c SEBENT
following bands:
Number of employees
EBEAH
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Emolument band: e#HE :
Nil = HK$1,000,000 Z%1,000,000 7T - 4
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001&7L£1,500,000/%8 T 1 -
HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/&7LE2,000,000/%8 T 1 -
HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7% 2,500,0005% 7T - 1
HK$2,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 2,500,001 7C 24,000,000/ 7T 1 -
3 5
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14.

TAXATION

The charge comprises:

14.

BiIE
B -

2018 2017
—EBE-NF —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET

Current year NEE
Taxation in PRC R 2 fLIA - 11,684
Taxation in other jurisdictions B R AR 2 FE - 416
Deferred taxation EER IR (115) 9,459
(115) 21,559

Representing: ¥

- Continuing operations —HECEER (115) 10,100
- Discontinued operation (note 16) — BRI EER (MizE16) - 11,459
(115) 21,559

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2017:
16.5%) of the estimated assessable profit for the year. No

provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the

financial statements as the Group has no assessable profit

for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the

“EIT Law"”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law,
the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% (2017: 25%).

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the

rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.

EBNEBHUARFEE 2 (T ERB S AR
E165% (ZZF—+F:165%)5T8 - i
RAKBERMETECREBLEEETHE

AR Al
AHEEEE -

A BRI RR A BB NGB

BEFECEMSFRA(TDEMBRE]
REEMSBEERIEN - FENBEARZ
HEAE25%(ZZF—+F : 25%) °

REMBDEERES 2 RBTIIREAERDE

BE 2 RITHEHE -
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14.

15.

TAXATION (CONT'D) 14. HE(E)
Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the loss before RERHIAF] EERSEE R H M2 EE R
taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss ZBRBAIEEYERNT
and other comprehensive income as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F T—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Loss from continuing operations before REFELLEL
taxation R 0 Al S 18 (24,113) (36,987)
(Loss)/profit from discontinued REDRILEEEB 2
operation before taxation M E (B8 ), % F (2,723) 19,540
Loss before taxation FRELRIEE (26,836) (17,447)
Tax calculated at the domestic tax rate ZAHIEN & 16.5%
of 16.5% (2017: 16.5%) (ZZ—+F :16.5%)5TE
ZTiIAE (4,428) (2,879)
Tax effect of share of results of an JEREE RN RIEE RGBT E
associate (64) (159)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible forRaE][ 1T BB 2 Fi s &
taxation purposes 4,846 13,905
Tax effect of revenue not taxable for BERFW S RET2E
taxation purposes (2,169) (237)
Effect of different tax rates of REMENEREEE 2B
subsidiaries operating in other NETRIB R 2 &
jurisdictions 2,378 974
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERFRIEEEZREFTE 1,167 10,492
Utilisation of tax losses previously not A% RIRER 2 HHIEEE
recognised (1,845) (762)
Under-provision in prior years BAFERETZ - 225
Taxation for the year AFERIE (115) 21,559
DIVIDENDS 15. HQ,E
The Directors do not recommend the payment of any HE-_ZT-NFR_T—+tF=A=+—H
dividend for each of the years ended 31 March 2018 and Lt%if; ' é%mﬁk% RIS o
2017.
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16.

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

The Group's discontinued operation for the year ended
31 March 2018 represented the sales and installation
of elevators and part of properties investment business
operated by TSY Group.

On 26 September 2017, the Group entered into a sale
and purchase agreement to dispose of the entire equity
interest in TSY Group. The disposal was completed on 26
September 2017, the date on which the control of TSY
Group was passed to the acquirer. The sales, results, and
cash flows of TSY Group attributable to the Group prior
to the date of disposal were as follows:

The (loss)/profit for the year from the discontinued
operation is analysed as follows:

16.

CRIEEERRK
AEERE T \FZAZ+-ALFE
ZERIEEEEBERREEEEENE
HERZEARBIMERALS -

R-T—+FNA-+RA  AEEHEFILE
BhE WHEERFRESEN 2K
o ZHEFER T —LFNAZ=+H
TR ERRBESENEHIRERERE
A REERHA  AREEAEFREERE
ZIHE RERBEREWT :

FRRACRIEEEER 2 (BB) &F
DWW :

2018 2017
—ZE-NF —ET—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
(Loss)/Profit from discontinued operation B 4% [F & & ¥ 75 2
(E8), & A (2,723) 8,081
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16. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (CONT'D)

The results of the discontinued operation for the period
from 1 April 2017 to 26 September 2017, which have

16. BRILEEERE(

)

/=

BE-ZEZ—+FMWA—HE_Z—+FNAC
+RBLEE EMAGABRZBERLEL

been included in consolidated profit or loss, are as BEBIEBNOT
follows:
Period from
1 April 2017 to
26 September Year ended
2017 31 March 2017
BE-Z—tHF
mMmA—H BHE
E-E—tF —E—tF
NB=+7<H =R=+—H
1 ER IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&T FHExT
Revenue W = - 169,990
Cost of goods sold HEE@mAA - (124,154)
Gross profit EH - 45,836
Other income H A 1 1
Decrease in fair value of investment WEMEZ AR ERD
properties (3,692) (30,234)
Administrative expenses ITERA X (116) (5,332)
Other gain and loss H At Uz J% 548 3 9,259
(Loss)/Profit before tax for the period/ Hiffl "EE%KF A (EE),
year pradl (3,804) 19,540
Income tax expense FTisBif X - (11,459)
(Loss)/Profit for the period/year B, FE(ER), w55 (3,804) 8,081
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries LB B AT MK 1,081 -
(Loss)/Profit from discontinued operation B 4% |F & & %75~ (E518)
SR (2,723) 8,081

During the year, the disposed TSY Group paid
approximately HK$115,000 (2017: HK$5,332,000) in
respect of operating activities, paid approximately HK$Nil
(2017: HK$Nil) in respect of investing activities and paid
approximately HK$2,653,000 (2017: HK$10,099,000) in
respect of financing activities.

No tax charge or credit arose on gain on disposal of the
discontinued operation.
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16. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (CONT’'D)

16. CRIEEEER(EZ)

2018
—ZE-NF
HK$'000
FET
Net assets at the date of disposal were as HEBHHEEFENT :
follows:
Investment properties wEME 192,681
Bank balances and cash RITEHR KRS 4
Trade and note receivables B 5 W GRIE kB R IE 202,769
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables J3RIE - &4 & H fth fE Y 218 54,889
Trade and note payables B RENRIBRENZER (31,542)
Other payables and accruals Hip eI RIE R ETE A (191,339)
Current tax liabilities mEHEAaE (11,689)
Borrowings BE (105,588)
Net assets of subsidiaries WBARZEEFE 110,185
Release of foreign currency translation HNEE X B (b s
reserve 35,194
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEHE A T 1,081
146,460
Total consideration: BB -
— Satisfied by cash —UARE I 93,734
— Deferred consideration included in other —iBIEF(E 4T B) A 2= 0 E fib JE L2 IR
receivable in current assets 52,726
146,460
Net cash inflow arising on the disposal: HEEANBSRAFHE
Cash consideration received BERREeNRE 93,734
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HEREMRESEEYD (4)
93,730

—F—
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17. LOSS/EARNINGS PER SHARE 17. BREE BF
(a) From continuing and discontinued operations (a) BFEREERROCRIEREEK
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share is based
on the following data: HK$'000 HK$'000
BREAREEBHEEDREATEERTHE FERT FHT

Loss attributable to owners of A EEREARNEFEIE Z A
the Company for the purpose R =EIHEH AFEGHER
of basic and diluted loss per
share (27,251) (46,055)

Number of shares

BoHAE
2018 2017
—E-N\F T —+tF
Weighted average number of AFESREARNEFEEIE 2N
shares for the purpose of G e B
basic and diluted loss per
share 3,823,134,667 3,650,710,605
For the year ended 31 March 2017 and 2018, B2 T—+FEr-_ZT—\HF=A=+—H
the calculation of diluted loss per share does IEFE - st EEREEEEF T EREER
not assume the exercise of the conversion of the RAT A AREIRATRRES RATEERE
Company’s outstanding convertible bonds and AT REEHERERBRRD

share option as it would result in a decrease in the
loss per share.
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17. LOSS/EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONT’'D)

(b) From continuing operations

17. BREE BF(E)

(b) SHEEEK

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share is based
on the following data: HK$'000 HK$'000
BREARRBEEERIEUTEIERE - FHET TET
Loss attributable to owners of AFtEFIEAR L E#EEE 2 A
the Company for the purpose R FIHEHB AFE(LEE
of basic and diluted loss per
share (24,528) (54,136)
Number of shares
RHEE
2018 2017
—ZE-N\F —ET—+F

Weighted average number of
shares for the purpose of HEF G HEE
basic and diluted loss per

share

RATEERERLEEEEZMN

3,823,134,667 3,650,710,605

For the year ended 31 March 2017 and 2018,
the calculation of diluted loss per share does
not assume the exercise of the conversion of the
Company’s outstanding convertible bonds and
share option as it would result in a decrease in the
loss per share.

BHE_Z—+FR_Z-N\F=ZA=+—H
IFFE - FFESREEBRR Y BRRER
AR AREHR AR RE S RITERBRE
A/ LT REERSRERRD
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17. LOSS/EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONT'D)

(c) From discontinued operation

17. BREE BF(E)

() ERIEEEER

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share is based
on the following data: HK$'000 HK$'000
BREARREEEERIEU TSRS FHET THET
(Loss)/profit attributable to R EERERREE(BR) &2
owners of the Company for ZARAREE AES(EE) 5 F
the purpose of basic and
diluted (loss)/earnings per
share (2,723) 8,081

Number of shares

KRB A
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—LF
Weighted average number RFTEEREAREE(BER), /AT
of shares for the purpose 2 MR R B B
of basic and diluted (loss)/
earnings per share 3,823,134,667 3,650,710,605

For the year ended 31 March 2017 and 2018, the
calculation of diluted (loss)/earnings per share
does not assume the exercise of the conversion of
the Company’s outstanding convertible bonds and
share option as it would result in a decrease in
the loss per share or increase in the earnings per
share.
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18.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

18. REWHE

Investment
Completed properties
investment under
properties construction Total
ERHRENE EEREME mst
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TERT TERT
FAIR VALUE: NFE
At 1 April 2016 RZZ—A"EWNA—H - 208,631 208,631
Additions NE 23,062 30,199 53,261
Transfer i 18,514 (18,514) -
Decrease in fair value NEERD (3,161) (25,154) (28,315)
Disposal HE - (14,352) (14,352)
Exchange realignment B & = (484) (12,264) (12,748)
At 31 March 2017 and RZZ—t+H=A=+—H
1 April 2017 RZF—+FMA—H 37,931 168,546 206,477
Decrease in fair value RNEER D - (3,692) (3,692)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 16) HEMB AR (KE16) (17,634) (175,047) (192,681)
Exchange realignment M & 2 2,323 10,193 12,516
At 31 March 2018 RZZE-N\E=A=1+—8 22,620 - 22,620
At 31 March 2018 and 2017, the investment properties RZB2-NER_Z—+F=A=+—0

are situated in the PRC.

The fair values of the Group’ s investment properties had
been arrived at on the basis of valuations carried out by
FESFEMETHWEENE AR AQE, an independent
qualified professional valuer not connected of the Group.
The valuations were arrived at by reference to recent
market prices for similar properties in similar locations
and conditions.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group pledged the
investment properties of HK$Nil (2017: HK$168,546,000)
to secure the general credit facilities granted to the
Group.

?xﬁ%%ﬁﬁ@ﬁfﬂ l °

AEBMREMEZ AFHEDRBEREEY
BRECBYAERBEXAEMEEESTRE
WET W EEFGERARETHEEMR
5 - ZEEHSZRLEE KGR Y
KM ERER -

RBERR  AEECERERZRENET

B(ZE—

RAKEERN—REERE -

+F

168,546,000 7T ) LAYE
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19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19. ¥  BERREE

Hydroelectric

power
stations Furniture,
Motor  Leasehold and related ~ Computer fixturesand  Plant and
vehicles improvement infrastructure ~ equipment  equipment  machinery Total
HE  KEUR i
RE NEEE REERZE 0 EERE  KERZE  AEREE h
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER Tén Ti#n Tén Tién TiEn Tén
COST OR VALUATION: RAESME
At 1 April 2016 RZE-/~ENA-A - - 28,489 2,19% 3,466 27477 61,628
Additions NE 1,098 8,505 - - 1,556 1,044 12,203
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE-HREAF - - 13,111 - - 3,507 16,638
Disposals ik (919) - - - - - (919)
Exchange realignment EXFE - - 2,221) - - (775) (2,99)
At 31 March 2017 RZE-t+#=A=1-R 179 8,505 39,379 2,19% 5,022 31,273 86,554
Additions NE - 2,044 - 10 789 1,307 4150
Exchange realignment ExfHg 19 664 5,050 - - 1870 7,603
At 31 March 2018 RZE-\E=A=1-A 198 11,213 44,429 2,206 5811 34,450 98,307
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ~ EHERFE :
AND IMPAIRMENT:

At 1 April 2016 RZE—7ENA-H - - - 2,174 2,182 17,532 22,488
Provided during the year TERRE 81 177 3,335 9 252 2283 6,097
Written back on disposal HEERE (57) - - - - - (57)
Impairment loss REFE - - 2,39 - - 606 2,935
Exchange realignment ExRE (1) - (1,538) - - (518) (2,057)
At 31 March 2017 RZE-tEZA=1-R 3 177 4,126 2,183 3,034 19,863 29,406
Provided during the year TEERRE 25 1,202 2,145 10 581 2353 6,316
(Reversal of)/impairment loss HEEE/(BE) - - 606 - - (606) -
Exchange realignment Exdz 4 28 319 - - 107 458
At 31 March 2018 RZF-)\#=A=1-R 52 1,407 7,196 2,193 3,615 21,717 36,180
CARRYING AMOUNT: EFE
At 31 March 2018 RZB-\£=R=1-H 146 9,806 37,033 13 2,1% 12,733 62,127
At 31 March 2017 RZB-tE=R=1-H 156 8,328 35,253 13 1,988 11,410 57,148
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19.

20.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19. ¥ - BERRK®B(E)
(CONT'D)
As at 31 March 2018, the value in use calculation uses RZE—N\F=A=+—08 " FHEBHE
cash flow projections based on the financial budgets FREBEMAEHREELEERBE SR
approved by the management covering a five-year 258 RBLFREFHUNEZReRE
period and cash flows beyond the five-year period are JiER3% (ZE—EF :3%)HE - §12
extrapolated using 3% (2017:3%). Key assumptions used EBRiTERSENEANFEREBTERT
by the management in the value in use calculation of KAZIERRBIEBEEMNE - F5HER
the cash-generating unit include budgeted gross profit BEZMATEERAE19.46% (=T —CF:
margin. The pre-tax discount rate used for estimating 18.12%) - BE_ET—-\F=A=+—H
the value in use is 19.46% (2017: 18.12%). For the WFE BREINAEBHNKEEEFRER
year ended 31 March 2018, the impairment test results T T(ZF—t4F 1 2,935,000870) 29
in the recognition of an impairment loss of property, ¥ WMELXRBREEE REGEeEREE
plant and equipment of HK$Nil (2017: HK$2,935,000) B AR -
in the Hydroelectric power business, which is expensed
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
GOODWILL 20. BHE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
COST BAE
At beginning of the reporting period NES R R 50,650 25,776
Acquisition of a subsidiary U i — A 8 A &) - 24,874
50,650 50,650
IMPAIRMENT A
At beginning of the reporting period R RS HA Y] 42,138 8,111
Impairment loss WEEE - 34,027
At end of the reporting period R & ER 42,138 42,138
CARRYING VALUE IREE
At end of the reporting period RREER 8,512 8,512
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20.

GOODWILL (CONT'D)

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated,
at acquisition, to the cash-generating units (“CGUs") that
are expected to benefit from that business combination.
The carrying amount of goodwill had been allocated as

20.

BE (&

EWER  CEANESHNEER ERETR
HERZEEEHPIZaNRESELEMN
(IHReELEBML])  BERESES RN
T

follows:
Electronic products Hydroelectric power
business business Total
EFEMER KEHET et
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
ZB-NE —T—+F ZB-NE —ZT—+F ZEBE-NF —T—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FERT TR FET FHET
Goodwill kS 8,512 8,512 - - 8,512 8,512
Impairment testing of goodwill BEZRENR

Electronic products business cash-generating unit

The amount of goodwill is allocated to the cash-
generating units within the Electronic products business
segment. Goodwill is tested for impairment by the
management by estimating the recoverable amount
of these cash-generating units based on value in use
calculations.

The recoverable amount has been determined on the basis
of value in use calculation. The key assumptions for the
value in use calculation are those regarding the discount
rates, growth rates and expected changes to revenue and
direct costs during the budgeted period. The management
estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific. Changes in revenue and direct costs
are based on past practices and expectations of future
changes in the market.
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20.

GOODWILL (CONT'D)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Cont'D)

Electronic products business cash-generating unit
(Cont'D)

During the year, the Group performed impairment review
for goodwill based on cash flow forecasts derived from
the most recent financial budget for the next five years
approved by the management and cash flows beyond the
five-year period are extrapolated using 0% (2017: 0%)
growth rate. The rate used to discount the forecast cash
10%). For the year
ended 31 March 2018,, the impairment test results in the

flows is approximately 10% (2017:

recognition of an impairment loss of goodwill of HK$Nil
(2017: HK$9,153,000) in the Electronic products business,
which is expensed in the consolidated statement of profit

or loss and other comprehensive income.

Hydroelectric power business cash-generating unit

The amount of goodwill is allocated to the cash-
generating units within the Hydroelectric power business
segment. Goodwill is tested for impairment by the
management by estimating the recoverable amount
of these cash-generating units based on value in use

calculations.

20.

e (E)
BB AR (%)
EFEREBREEHEQ (A)

RAFE  AEEREBRERE 2B ERK
hFEBEFUBBEEMEEZReREEA
EHHERE URZE0% (ZE—tF:

0% EEREHERFHZEBEBERE - AR
FEBEARSREZMRELNF/I0% (ZF

—tEF10%)  BEZT-N\F=A=1
—BIEFE  ETEREXBHZREIRGR
RERBEHNEBRTET(ZF—+F:

9,153,000 L) ' ERREBRENEME

T o 8 #R R P HARR

KNEXEBREELEEN

FESHEIRTRKEXEHIHBAZREES
B o Fﬁéﬁ/ﬂiﬁ AR T BB E RIR R A
BEAEAMECZEREELSB ML 2K
[B] & ¥ i #ETT o
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20.

GOODWILL (CONT'D)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Cont'D)

Hydroelectric power business cash-generating unit
(Cont'D)

The recoverable amount has been determined on the basis
of value in use calculation. The key assumptions for the
value in use calculation are those regarding the discount
rates, growth rates and expected changes to revenue and
direct costs during the budgeted period. The management
estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific. Changes in revenue and direct costs
are based on past practices and expectations of future
changes in the market.

As at 31 March 2017, the value in use calculation uses
cash flow projections based on the financial budgets
approved by the management covering a five-year
period and cash flow beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using 3% growth rate. Key assumptions used
by the management in the value in use calculation of the
cash-generating unit include budgeted gross profit margin.
The pre-tax discount rate used for estimating the value
in use is 18.12%. As at 31 March 2017, the impairment
test results in the recognition of an impairment loss of
goodwill of HK$24,874,000 in the Hydroelectric power
business, which is expensed in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

148 China Sinostar Group Company Limited Annual Report 2018

20.

e (E

BEZRENAE)
KEXBREELBN(F)

A EERNREREEFEEEE - £5
BEMAEEMEHEIERRABBNERE -
BRERULRBEHAKRSMNEZKA 2B
HE) o BEERBBRHANRMGFRERE
AR RIS W EESRE RN R
BRBRNE - MR REERA 2 B BRE
BEBHIRETHEMARKEE(EL A

RZZE—+F=A=+—0 FEABENHE
EEREREREMEC ATFHYBKESE
RERSBARAFHUEZHSRENE
AEEERI%HEYE - ERERBECELEN
EREBEFEEPEACEFERROEREE
EME - AREECAEENNARRER
18.12% - R=ZT—EF=A=+—8 " XK
BEBRBENAGERER 2 BEREEE
/24,874,000 T - EREREERE RH A
2HEWHBERPHR o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M ERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE_FT—)\F=A=1T—HILFE

21. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(a) General information of subsidiaries

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are

as follows:

Nominal value

TEMELF
(a) HEBARZ—RER
AATZEBHBRAEEDT -

Place of of issued
incorporation ordinary
or share capital/ Percentage of equity
registration/ registered interests attributable Principal
Company name operations capital to the Company activities
Mk, BRTERRR AR BEERE
NEER =E b X/ EMEREE BRADL FTEXHK
2018 2017
ZE-N\E —E-tF
Cosmo Communications USA/Canada US$1,571,000 93.80% 93.80% Trading of electronic
Corporation ("Cosmo”) appliances and investment
holding
ELVQIIEIN 1,571,000% 7 ETEREHRREER
Harvest Way Holdings British Virgin Islands Us$1 100% 100% Investment holding
Limited ("BVI")
EREARES (E REZR
((EB#ERHS])
Master Light Enterprises Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100% Investment holding
Limited
30 QAT REBR
Starlight Electronics USA Inc.  USA US$10,000 100% 100% Trading in electronic products
X 10,000% 7T EfERES
Starlight Marketing Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100% Securities trading and trading
in electronic products
Fi BT EHBERETERESD
Starlite Consumer Electronics  USA Uss$20 100% 100% Trading in electronic products
(USA) Inc.
XH 0% ETERES
The Singing Machine Company,USA US$380,706 51.26% 51.34% Trading in consumer karaoke
Inc. ("SMC")** audio equipment and
electronic products
XH 380,706% 7T HEFNOKFERER

ETERES
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E--300) PN
MDA R 2 —RE R

21. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D) 21.

(a) General information of subsidiaries (Cont'D) (a)

Nominal value

Place of of issued
incorporation ordinary
or share capital/ Percentage of equity
registration/ registered interests attributable Principal
Company name operations capital to the Company activities
MR, ERTEBRR ARREMERE
AREW =E b X/ EMEREE BEADHL TEXHK
2018 2017
—E-N\F ZE-t#F
FERBEEXARA T4 PRC* RMB20,000,000 - 100% Properties investment
ek ARE NERE
20,000,0007C
REBHEEERAT PRC* RMB20,000,000 100% 100% Properties investment
e AEH nERE
20,000,0007T
KEMREKNEEERAA  PRC RMB500,000 100% 100% Operation and management
of a hydroelectronic power
station
M ARH500,0007 KEREERER
RERKERENRKNEEE PRCH RMB50,000,000 100% 100% Operation and management
YNG of a hydroelectronic power
station
e ARE KEHEERER
50,000,0007T
NERBEEHERLER PRC* RMB20,050,000 100% - Properties development
NIk
e AE% nERE
20,050,0007T
* These subsidiaries were PRC wholly foreign owned * ZEWBARATREINGEE B
enterprises. ¥
o The common stock of SMC is quoted on the Over- o SMCZ & mIREEBISING HiF
the-Counter Bulletin Board in the United States of BIRIR(E -
America.
# Disposed by the Group on 26 September 2017. # AEBRZ-ZZ—tFNA=ZF+X

## Acquired by the Group on 25 September 2017.
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21. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D)

(a)

General information of subsidiaries (Cont'D)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the
Company which, in the opinion of the directors,
principally affect the results of the year or
constitute a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in

particulars of excessive length.

Other than Harvest Way Holdings Limited and
Seasonal Bliss Limited which are held directly
by the Company, all other subsidiaries are held
indirectly by the Company. None of the subsidiaries
had any loan capital outstanding at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

The table below provides details of non-wholly
owned subsidiaries of the Group that have material
non-controlling interests:

21. FEMBLAT (&)
MBAR 2 —RER(E)

EERRLERMAIARBHKE AR A
BHAFEZRXEREENTE
EBRAEHEEEFETIRAND -
E=ERRREHEMCHBRRZHF
B BLENBRITE -

(a)

Proportion of ownership

BrHarvest Way Holdings Limited &
Seasonal Bliss Limited BA R AIH

BRAN

MAEREMLHERATSG R

RARHEEFE -  RAFEHAF
EREAEHE HEMNBRAEE
MREEERER -

TR RNEEEREANIFFERME
RIFTEWMBRRZFHE -

Place of incorporation interests and voting rights
and principal held by non-controlling  Profit allocated to non- Accumulated non-
Name of subsidiary place of business interests controlling interests controlling interests
FERBESENERER
WEARAR SR ERTEEE Y REZRLA PEEFEREZRERN ZetEnRER
As at 31 March As at 31 March As at 31 March
R=B=1+-AR WZA=1+-HR R=B=1+-HR
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
ZE-\E CZ-tF ZEBE-\E CE-tF ZEBE-\E “S—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TEL THER TEL
SMC (note a) USA
SMC(Htita) *H 48.74%  48.66% 580 7,207 29,675 33,033
Note a: The subsidiaries of SMC are all wholly-owned Mizta : RMEFEERA - SMCHKI B AR

during both years.

BR2EESR -
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21. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D) 21.

(a)

General information of subsidiaries (Cont'D)

Summarised financial information in respect

of the Group’s subsidiaries that have material

non-controlling interests is set out below. The

summarised financial information below represents

amounts before elimination of intragroup

transactions.

TEWMBLR(E)

(a)

MEARZ—RER(E)

TXHFIREE R E AR
GMBRARZHBERBE - TX
BIMPHER B RIEH HEER
RHZAZ T

SMC and its subsidiaries SMCR EME AR
2018 2017
—ZE-N\F —ET—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Non-current assets EnRBEE 11,042 22,006
Current assets mENE E 87,775 72,068
Current liabilities mnEBE (35,977) (28,556)
Non-current liabilities FERBaE (1,954) -
Equity RS 60,885 65,518
Revenue U = 474,303 412,770
Other income and expenses s K FASE (2,379) (16,831)
Profit and total comprehensive  ARNREEFH N2 mEUkREEE
income for the year 1,189 21,420
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from  &&ESHI|WE (CRL),/
operating activities mAHER (5,538) 7,929
Net cash outflow from investing & /EEIR &R L /F5E
activities (2,008) (1,156)
Net cash outflow from financing gEY& EBNIR AL FE8
activities (4,088) (5,299)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash B4 NESZEY
and cash equivalents Rt A>), /38 )% #a (11,634) 1,474
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22.

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (CONT'D)  22. REtE QT 2z
2018 2017
S —E—tf
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Cost of investments in an associate, REFERNT BN -
unlisted JELE™ 6,510 6,510
Share of post-acquisition results, net of FE/FUEER %4  BURE
dividend received HHE 1,008 944
Impairment loss REEE (3,751) (3,751)
3,767 3,703

As at 31 March 2018, the Group carried out reviews of

the recoverable amount of investment in an associate. The

recoverable amount has been determined based on the

share of net asset value of the associate as at 31 March

2018. The impairment test results in the recognition of an
impairment loss of HK$Nil (2017: HK$3,751,000), which
is expensed in the consolidated statement of profit or loss

and other comprehensive income for the year ended 31

March 2018.

REEE R R Z AR 3 LT ER ISR
EE - HMBREKBRSRERBER-ZZ—N\F
ZA=+—8 TEEHBEATZAKE
CHETTEE - AINOESENREBENR_Z
—NFZA=+—HELBEARZEEF
EMEE - BREAHNERABRAEEET
BIL(ZT—+H4F 3,751,000 7T) © RNE
EZT- N\F-A=T—HILFEZHREA
M E A2 E RO -

Details of the Group’s associate are as follows: REEBERNTZFHBOT -
Nominal
Form of Place of value of
business registration/ registered Attributable equity Principal
Name of associate structure operations capital interest to the Group  activities
BeENRER EBEBEL i EEnE  AMELEE AEBEGERAER TEXH
2018 2017
“E-NE  —TLF
Interforce Limited Limited liability ~ Hong Kong HK$500,000 30.00% 30.00% Trading of
("Interforce”) company electronic
products
EABRAA BEREEAR 0 500,000 7T EfERES
(rg#1)
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22.

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (CONT'D)

The associate is indirectly held by the Company through
its wholly-owned subsidiary.

Included in the cost of investments in an associate is
goodwill of HK$Nil (2017: HK$Nil) arising on acquisition
of an associate in prior year.

Summarised financial information of the Group’s

associate

Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group's associate is set out below. The summarised
financial information below represents amounts shown
in the associate’s management accounts prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs.

REEERNT 2R (E
NG| AlEAE

BEARGEATNEBERANEAAME
A -
DT 2 4R B B S O A
BRAFEEZBREET(ZE— L
) -

FEEBEAR M BENEER

BEASEBERR ZMBERBRIDT -
T ERBMERE 2N RIEFT BV BR
SRARENBZAEEERE ZHH ©

The Group's associate is accounted for using the equity REBZBERNRRWRERENZEGE
method in these consolidated financial statements. BWMERARR ©
Interforce B
2018 2017
—EBE-N\F —T—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TET
Non-current assets FERBEE 537 841
Current assets RENEE 20,318 17,806
Current liabilities nEAE (8,300) (6,305)
Revenue U = 122,621 137,900
Profit and total comprehensive income ZAREERFI N Z EWN A%
for the year 1,310 2,299
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22. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (CONT'D)

Summarised financial information of the Group’s

associate (CONT'D)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interest in

the associate recognised in the consolidated financial

22. R RNTl2REH(
AEEBE AT CHBERMEE)

VA b BA 75 B R 22 B
EHE R AR IREENHKRAT

MR HER

statements:
Interforce B3P
2018 2017
—E-NF —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Net assets of Interforce attributable to B ABEEBHEEFE
owners 12,555 12,342
Proportion of the Group’s ownership ~ ANEBRBH - EEERER
interest in Interforce el 30% 30%
Goodwill [EES - -
Carrying amount of the Group's interest A& @R B 2 #Ex 2 BRE(E
in Interforce 3,767 3,703
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23. DEFERRED TAXATION 23. ELEHRIE
The followings are the major deferred tax (liabilities)/ RAEERBAFEERRAETEZRERIE(E
assets recognised and movements thereon during the &) BEREEHET

current and prior years:

Accelerated

tax Others
depreciation  Tax losses (Note) Total
Hi
IR IBINE HIEEE (FHEE) HEg
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FExT FET FET
At 1 April 2016 RZE—XR"FW™A—H 1,653 17,199 (2,098) 16,754
(Charge)/credit to (#n8), st AEE
profit or loss 416 (12,062) 2,187 (9,459)
At 31 March 2017 R-Z—+FE=A=+—H 2,069 5,137 89 7,295
Credit/(charge) to A (HB) B
profit or loss 928 (813) - 115
At 31 March 2018 RZZE-NEFE=A=+—H 2,997 4,324 89 7,410
Note: Others mainly represented temporary difference arising e EMFEEREFEZARSEBNMELEZ
from unrealised profits on inventories. TREER o
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23.

DEFERRED TAXATION (CONT'D)

For the purposes of presentation in the consolidated
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax

23.

EAER IR (4E
RRGARBRRRZIIME - & TREH
BEERABDEN - AEMEREARZ

assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is RETIAZRDTAT
the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial
reporting purposes:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—LF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Deferred tax assets REFIEE E 7,410 7,295
Deferred tax liabilities REHIEEE - -
7,410 7,295

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of HK$296,818,000 (2017: HK$303,134,000)
and the Group has not recognised deferred tax asset
in respect of tax losses of HK$243,602,000 (2017:
HK$248,682,000) due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams. Included in the unused tax losses are
losses of HK$53,216,000 (2017: HK$54,451,000) that
will expire in 2030, losses of HK$162,578,000 (2017:
HK$164,162,000) that will expire within 20 years and
losses of HK$17,826,000 (2017: HK$21,323,000) that
will expire within 20 years other tax losses may be carried
forward indefinitely.

RBMEBRR REB2ADRAREBS
8 /296,818,000 L( = & — £ F:
303,134,000 7T ) o B A K #g 78 &
RRBEFER  NEBEERFTIEE
$8243,602,000% T( = T — + F:
248,682,000 7T ) RIELE R IEE & -
AEARBEEBEBEEIR_Z=F3
HY 7 E54853,216,00008 T ( - & — 4 :
54,451,000 7T ) ~ B R =+ F K B H
2 5 18162,578,000 T( = F — £ F :
164,162,000 7T ) & #% 7 = + F A 2 5
Z 18 1817,826,000/ ;u( = T — £ F ¢
21,323,000/8 7T ) - H 7% 18 & 18 Al & R 1Y

+
§n~°
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24. INVENTORIES 24. FE&
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Finished goods 2IAK G 77,354 62,807

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income during the year amounted to
approximately HK$386,007,000 (2017: HK$469,223,000).

RAFE  REEABRZREMEERZEX
BRARAI 2 FEMAE386,007,000/8 T
(ZZ—+4 :469,223,00087T) °

25. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 25. FEWEETE - S [ E4th B 2k
RECEIVABLES 15
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Trade debtors FEWE 5 BRI 25,011 211,186
Consideration receivable from disposal & —EK B AR EWRARE
of a subsidiary (note 16) (Kizx16) 52,726 -
Prepayments AT IR 1,417 892
Deposits and other receivable T R&H M R GRIE 11,555 31,772
90,709 243,850
Analysed for reporting purposes as: TERBAIWA
Current assets MBEE 90,709 243,395
Non-current assets ERBEE - 455
90,709 243,850
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25. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 25.

RECEIVABLES (CONT’D)

The aged analysis of trade debtors net of allowance for
doubtful debts presented based on the invoice dates at
the end of the reporting period, which approximate the
respective recognition dates, is as follows:

FEWERIE » IRE R H M EWR
5 (&)
RFER(ESEamMIZBHER) REE
BEHZ2Y2EWE SRBE(HRREER)
ZERBATT

2018 2017

—E-N\F “E—+F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

0 - 30 days 0&30H 12,023 10,516
31 - 60 days 31%60H 1,307 874
61 — 90 days 61290H 2,060 3,004
Over 90 days HHiE90H 9,621 196,792
25,011 211,186

The Group allows an average credit period ranging from
0 to 365 days (2017: 30 days to 365 days) to its trade
customers. Before accepting any new customers, the
management will internally assess the credit quality of the
potential customer and define appropriate credit limits.
Management closely monitors the credit quality of trade
and other receivables and considers the trade and other
receivables that are neither past due nor impaired to be

of a good quality.

Included in the Group’'s trade debtors are debtors with
aggregate carrying amount of HK$9,997,000 (2017:
HK$6,339,000) which are past due as at the reporting
date for which the Group has not provided for impairment
loss. The directors of the Company determined that these
receivables are either due from customers of good credit
quality with no history of default or covered by credit
insurance. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.

REEGETHESERP ZFHEEHNTO
HZE365A(=ZF—+4F : 30HE365H) °
BEWHEP A  EEEBBRNITFEHELR
FHEEYEE  TETHENEEEE &
BEZRENZIRAMERFIENEEER
2 RERSHANRRENE S RHMEK
HENEEEERRL -

AEEZEVESEBEERETRRER
9,997,000 7L ( = F—+ % : 6,339,000/
T ZEWRE - ARKRERBSEHESR
B EARKEAREHREBERE - A2
AEEHENERIGERBREEEERER
FHBEREHIZEERBREZEFPZ
FRIA o AN S M Btk S AE AR ES A (TR R

o
[s[=ling
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25.

DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 25.

RECEIVABLES (CONT’D)

The aged analysis of trade debtors which are past due but
not impaired is as follows:

FEWERIE » IRE R HMEWR
B/ (&)

BAMERRET EKESEEY ERAN
m

2018 2017

—E-N\F —FT—tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHT

Overdue 1 — 30 days #HE1E30H 1,355 -
Overdue 31 - 60 days #HI31260H 1,362 3,313
Overdue 61 — 90 days #HI61Z=90H 3,259 565
Overdue over 90 days B HAEB R0 H 4,021 2,461
9,997 6,339

Based on the experience of the management and
repayment record of the customers, trade receivables
which are past due but not impaired and not associated
with litigations are generally recoverable.

REEEEZKRMEFPZENRLE OB
HERBEERESHAZEKE SRR
A m o

Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts RIRBESE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
At beginning of the year F9] 9,220 8,508
Impairment loss recognised EERZBEERE 978 712
10,198 9,220

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are
individually impaired trade and other debtors with
an aggregated balance of HK$10,198,000 (2017:
HK$9,220,000) which have either been placed under
liguidation or in financial difficulties.

160 China Sinostar Group Company Limited Annual Report 2018

REBEREEANDREZE S REMmEK
BRTE - 44564/510,198,0008 L(—T—+
19,220,000 70) - BARFKAERLE
7705 28 o TE R B B PR B o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M ERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE_FT—)\F=A=1T—HILFE

26. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

27.

26. AMNTHHESENR

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—LF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
COST B A<
At 1 April R A—8 45,156 -
Additions NE - 45,156
Exchange realignment [E R 2 4,832 -
At 31 March R=ZA=+—H 49,988 45,156
AMORTISATION e
At 1 April KEA—H (782) -
Amortisation during the year F R (2,084) (782)
Exchange realignment P& 2 5 & (206) -
At 31 March R=A=+—H (3,072) (782)
CARRYNG AMOUNT BREE
At 31 March R=ZA=+—H 46,916 44,374
PROPERTIES FOR SALE UNDER 27. BERPEHEYR
DEVELOPMENT
2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Properties for sale under development ZRF\FEME 138,129 -

All properties for sale under development are located
in PRC and expected to sell approximately 100% of the
properties within 2-3 years.

BERTHFEVEILATE  BAME

BR2E3FARHERE -
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28. INVESTMENTS HELD FOR TRADING 28. BFEEEZ2RE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

Equity securities, at fair value N NS ]
Listed in Hong Kong REB LT 2 139
Listed outside Hong Kong REBEIN T 261 241
263 380
29. AMOUNT DUE FROM A DIRECTOR 29. EWEEFE

Amount due from a director disclosed pursuant to section

RIEEBCRBED)E383(1)(d)IFRHKE 2

383(1)(d) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are as JEWEEFRIAMT
follows:
Maximum amount
outstanding Balance at Balance at
during the year 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
FRREERM RZB-N\F R-B—+tF
Eese# ZA=t—-H#&& Z=ZA=t-—H#&HK
Name i HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FERT FHET FET
Wang Xing Qiao TES 68 68 -

The advance is interest-free, unsecured and repayable on
demand.

30. AMOUNTS DUE TO IMMEDIATE 30.
HOLDING COMPANY AND A DIRECTOR

The amounts are interest-free, unsecured and repayable

on demand.
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31. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED 31. BB QR 2
COMPANIES
Maximum
amount
Name of directors outstanding Balance at Balance at
having beneficial during the 31 March 31 March
Name interest year 2018 2017

FRREEZR RZZE-—NF R-ZE—tF

=1 BEESERcEEER RR&ZeSE ZA=+t—-B#% ZA=t—-B#&#H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEx FEx FET
FEEEEEEMERE Wang Jing

BRRA T & 9,989 62 9,989

Sinostar Asset Management Wang Xing Qiao
Limited TES 852 - 852
62 10,841

All the above advances are unsecured, interest-free and
have no fixed repayment terms.

32. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 32.

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group
and bank deposits which carry interest at an average rate
of 0.01% (2017: 0.01%) per annum.

ERABERRSEER 25 EEEEEE
IR -

RITERRRE

BIEHRLBESBEALEBMFRS - U
MR FHENERIEFBE(ZE—HF
0.01E)ZRITF °
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33. CREDITORS AND ACCRUED CHARGES 33. ENERERESEAR

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+tF

HK$000 HK$'000

FExT FET

Trade payables H S EN A 15,086 11,181

Note payables and accrued interest JET R R B A FLE - 7,207
Consideration payable for acquisition of

subsidiaries W EEHT B A R 2 BT R(E - 39,996

Other creditors H b fEERIB 5,601 8,613

Accrued expenses FEETF X 18,888 44,994

39,575 111,991

The aged analysis of trade creditors presented based on

RBERRREZAHR2I 2 BAREBEZE

the invoice dates at the end of the reporting period is as o
follows:

2018 2017
—EBE-N\F —T—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
0 — 30 days 0%30H 7,174 10,055
31 - 60 days 31£260H 1,135 380
61 — 90 days 61£290H 1,984 -
Over 90 days HBiBo0H 4,793 746
15,086 11,181

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 90

days.
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34. AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED 34. BRAE AT 2HRE
COMPANIES
The amount of approximately US$466,000 (equivalent #1466,000% sT( 48 & 53,635,000/ 7T )
to HK$3,635,000) (2017:HK$Nil) is interest bearing of (ZZE—+tF:TBL) ZHREEZRFF
6% per annum, unsecured and repayable within 1 year. Eo%it B BEARMEARNEE - L
The amount of approximately US$126,000 (equivalent to 126,000 JT(#8 & #979,000%& L) (=&
HK$979,000) (2017:HK$Nil) is interest bearing of 6% per —tF: TR ZFIABRRF N EE%iT
annum, unsecured and repayable after 1 year. The others B EBEMEMERER - BMORIBERR
are interest-free, unsecured and repayable on demand. B EEIRRRERKERE -
35. BORROWINGS 35. fBE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Other borrowings, secured EMBEREE 4,900 99,500
The borrowings are repayable as follows: BEEERET
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Within one year —F R 3,925 20,477
More than one year but not exceeding #B3i8—F BT BBMFE
two years 975 79,023
4,900 99,500
Less: Amount due within one year B AR —FREED
shown under current liabilities af& (3,925) (20,477)
Amount due after one year AN —FREENRTE 975 79,023

As at 31 March 2018, the Group's borrowings are

fixed-rate borrowings and bears interest at 5.45% per

annum (2017: 10%). The borrowings are secured by

investment properties under construction of HK$Nil (2017:

HK$168,546,000).

RZE-N\F=ZRA=+—H AEEZE
EREEMEERBZEFNES45E(Z
T—LF 10E)FE - ZEBETIUE
BREMETELER/RER(ZT—LF:

168,546,000 7T) °
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B

36.

T \F=H=A

—HIFFE

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 30 July 2014, the Company issued 3% coupon
convertible bonds (the “Bonds”) at a principal amount
of HK$75,000,000 maturing on 30 July 2017 to the
immediate holding company of the Company, which was
subsequently transferred to an independent third party,
Lushan Investment Holdings Limited, on 30 December
2015. The Bonds are denominated in Hong Kong dollars
and the Company agrees to guarantee payment of all
sums payable in relation to the Bonds. Interest of 3% per
annum will be paid half-annually up until the settlement
date.

The Bonds are convertible, at the option of the bond
holder,
Company at a conversion price of HK$0.23 (after

into ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the

adjustment for capital reorganisation) per share, subject
to anti-dilutive adjustments, at any time on or after
30 July 2014 up to and including the maturity date.
Unless previously redeemed, converted or purchased and
cancelled, the outstanding Bonds will be redeemed by the
Company at 100% of its principal amount on the maturity

date.

At initial recognition, the Bonds were split into an equity
component of HK$61,480,000 and a liability component
of HK$52,056,000. The liability component was
determined based on the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at an effective interest
rate of 16.21% per annum, being the average yield of
similar financial instruments with similar credit rating and
structure but without the call conversion option, which
incorporated appropriate adjustments to reflect possible
impact of country factors, firm specific risk and liquidity
risk.

The equity component was presented as convertible
bonds reserve in equity, whereas the liability component
was classified under current liabilities and non-current
liabilities at 31 March 2017.
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RZZ—NFEA=+H  ARAIAERRAR
ZBEEER QR EITAE 75,000,000
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FT-_A=1TH&EZETELE=7FLushan
Investment Holdings Limited ° &% AT
AEAERRRIRERES 2 —ENFIES
SAEHER - REFEIEFAE 2 FEH

BYEEFEXIN—R BEEREBRHL -
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36.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (CONT'D)

The movement of the liability component of the Bonds for

the current year is set out below:

36. AIEAREZR(ZE)
NAFEEEES BEDH 2 BHHHINT -

HK$'000
FET
At 1 April 2016 RZZE—R"EMNA—H 64,399
Imputed interest expense for the year FABERSRAX 10,031
Coupon interest paid ERNEER (2,256)
At 31 March 2017 R-ZZB—+F=RA=+—H 72,174
Imputed interest expense for the year FAHEFN SR 4,123
Coupon interest paid ENER (1,297)
Converted to shares during the year FRER BN (75,000)
At 31 March 2018 RZE-NF=ZA=+—H -
None of the Bonds has been converted into ordinary HEZT—+F=A=1+—HLFE #E
shares of the Company during the year ended 31 March BEHFERARR A ERERK -

2017.

On 4 August 2017, the Company and the bondholder
entered into the Amendment Deed to extend the
maturity date from 31 July 2017 to 30 October 2017
and no interest would be borne by the Company on the
outstanding principal amount during the period from 1
August 2017 to 30 October 2017.

On 20 September 2017, the Bonds with nominal value of
HK$75,000,000 were converted into 326,086,956 ordinary
shares at a conversion price of HK$0.23 (note 37).

tFNANA - ARARESFFA

R-F—
NCVACHES: o
H=+—

BEMAR T —tF+

EILE?:_?—‘{:i‘T—H =+B"

MARBTEHE-_T—

tFENA-HE

%E—‘tﬁﬂ'ﬂ =+H ,HEF'EEJ%E%%ZIK&%E%%

ERIFE -

R-_T—+tHFNA=-+B @AE
75,000,000 T 2 EH LA E#{E0.238 T

i 5326,086,956 1% L@

A% (B 3E37) ©
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37. SHARE CAPITAL 37. B
Nominal value Number
per share of shares Amount
BREE BB -}
HK$ HK$'000
B IT FET
Authorised: VETE IR
At 1 April 2016, RZZE—R"FMA—H -
31 March 2017, —T—+F=A=+—80"
1 April 2017 and —E—t+EFMNA-BK
31 March 2018 —E-N\F=A=+—H 0.01 50,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRBRKA
At 1 April 2016, R-ZE—XEMWA—AQ -
31 March 2017 and —E—+HF=A=1+—HEK
1 April 2017 —E—+FWA—H 0.01 3,650,710,605 36,507
Issue of shares upon s A A (E SR R IT AR
conversion of convertible  (Ffi5F)
bonds (Note) 0.01 326,086,956 3,261
At 31 March 2018 W-E-NF=A=+—H 0.01 3,976,797,561 39,768
Note: MEE -
On 20 September 2017, the Bonds with nominal value of R-_ET—+FNA-+H8 ®E{E75000,000%
HK$75,000,000 were converted into 326,086,956 ordinary shares TZEFNTREBRRH02IBTHERER
at a conversion price of HK$0.23 per conversion share. Share # /3326,086,956 H B - F RN ARK AL
capital of approximately HK$3,261,000 and share premium of 3,261,000 7T R IR0 E4)133,104,00048 7T ©

approximately HK$133,104,000 were recorded in the book during
the year.
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38.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Share option scheme of The Singing Machine
("SMC”), a 51.26% (2017: 51.34%)
owned subsidiary of the Company

Company, Inc.

SMC’s share option scheme was approved by SMC’s
shareholders at the special meeting held on 6 September
2001 (the “SMC Scheme”). The SMC Scheme was
developed to provide a means whereby the directors and
selected employees, officers, consultants, and advisors
of SMC may be granted incentive or non-qualified stock
options to purchase common stock of SMC. The SMC
Scheme authorises an aggregate of 1,950,000 shares of
SMC's common stock and a maximum of 450,000 shares

to any one individual in any one fiscal year.

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to each participant
in any 12 month period up to the date of the grant will
be 300,000 shares.

The period within which the shares must be taken up
under an option is any period as determined by the Board
of SMC, which will not be more than 10 years (or 5 years
in the case of a holder with 10% or more of the common
stock) from the date on which the option is granted. Each
option vested in one year from the date of grant.

The subscription price of the share options is determined
by SMC’s Stock Option Committee, which consists of
two or more directors chosen by the Board of SMC. The
subscription price of the share options will be no less
than the closing price of SMC's shares on the offer date (or,
if granted to a holder of 10% or more of the common
stock, the subscription price will be no less than 110% of
the closing price of SMC's shares on the offer date).

The movements of the share options granted to directors
of the Company and employees of the Group pursuant to
the SMC Scheme were as follows:

38.

BERESTE

KARFEES1.26% (ZF—+tF :51.34%)
# % 2 Mt B A FThe Singing Machine
Company, Inc.([SMCJ) z B T8

SMCBERESFEER-_TEZE—FHL AN
BRITZREFRAS EESMCI R I #
(ISMCETEI]) e SMCEH &I TH 1 FSMCE S

RgkiEREE  SRAE  BEEARBZRAAL
REAERERERUABBMCERBRZ

F5% o SMCHT &I S £1,950,0004SMC
Tl MERALRSVRFEAERS
% 450,000 f&1p °

B Hﬂ%BOO,OOOHX °

BREAITEHRHASMCESRBIRTE « &
TR AR B R BBI10F (S ARE
LEKRI10%FU EZ2FEE A AIRSEF) -
EEBRERAELBHE—FRES -

EREZREERMCREEZ B R
T EECHMCESRAMKIEZME
N EERAK - BREZRBEKTER
SMCR D R B @Elﬂﬁzuézmﬁﬁﬁﬁdz&%
HELTBRIO%IAEZHFEBEAMS - &
BEBTERASMCRORELN A K TE
2110%) °

RIBSMCETE] > MARRIEEZERAKEE
BEROBREZZSHIIWMT :
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BRESTE(E)

RATFEE51.26%(=F—+F :51.34%)
% 2 Mt B A FThe Singing Machine
Company, Inc. ([SMC]) Z & & 5 2l

38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONT'D)

Share option scheme of The Singing Machine
Company, Inc. (“SMC”), a 51.26% (2017: 51.34%)
owned subsidiary of the Company (CONT'D)

(#&)
Number of share options
BREHE
Outstanding
at  Granted Exercised Lapsed Outstanding
Exercise  beginning during the during the during the  at end of
price of the year year year year the year
Date of grant Riti A5 BB EPHRTHE FAERE FRETE FREERM ERERTHE
For the year ended HEZ-Z-N\%
31 March 2018 ZR=1+-HLEE
31 March 2008 * “ZZ\F=A=1-H 0.45 120,000 - - (120,000) -
31 March 2009 * “EENFZA=T-H 0.1 120,000 - - - 120,000
31 March 2010 * “Z-ZFZF=1-H 0.03 60,000 - - - 60,000
29 October 2010 * ZE-FFTAZtNA 0.06 520,000 - - - 520,000
31 March 2011 * “E——f=ZA=+—H 0.04 60,000 - - - 60,000
31 March 2012 * “Z--F=Zf=1-H 0.12 60,000 - - - 60,000
31 March 2013 # “E-ZFZf=1-H 0.18 60,000 - - - 60,000
1 July 2013 # “F-ZF+A-AH 0.21 580,000 - - - 580,000
31 March 2014 # “Z-NFZR=F-H 0.16 60,000 - - - 60,000
31 March 2015 # “Z-RFZA=1-H 0.17 60,000 - - - 60,000
1 July 2015 # “E-hE+A—H 0.17 25,000 - - - 25,000
31 March 2016 # “Z-RFzZR=1-H 0.24 145,000 - - - 145,000
10 August 2016 # ZE-R~ENATA 0.32 100,000 - - - 100,000
3 May 2017 # Sl S el = 0.47 - 380,000 - - 380,000
1 April 2017 # “E—+#MmA—AH 0.55 - 80,000 - - 80,000
30 June 2017 # “E-+FRA=1H 0.55 - 20,000 - - 20,000
1,970,000 480,000 - (120,000) 2,330,000
Exercisable at end of the RERT T
year 1,850,000
Weighted average exercise MELHAEE(ET)
price (US$) 0.17 0.49 - 0.45 0.22
Holders of the share options BRESBASTMT :
are analysed as follows:
Directors ) 680,000 100,000 - (120,000) 660,000
Employees EE 1,290,000 380,000 - - 1,670,000
1,970,000 480,000 - (120,000) 2,330,000
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONT'D) 38. BBRRESTEI(E
Share option scheme of The Singing Machine RARFEE51.26%(=F—+tF :51.34%)
Company, Inc. (“SMC”), a 51.26% (2017: 51.34%) % 2 M B A SThe Singing Machine
owned subsidiary of the Company (CONT'D) Company, Inc. ([SMC]) Z 8 B # 5t &
(#&)
Number of share options
BREZE
Outstanding
at Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Qutstanding
Exercise  beginning  during the during the  during the  at end of
price  of the year year year year the year
Date of grant Riti B RE FOHRTE FAEEE FRETHE FREXM ERERT
For the year ended HEZZ—+t%
31 March 2017 ZR=T-BIEE
10 April 2006 * “EERENATA 0.33 42,000 - (36,000) (6,000) -
31 March 2007 * “ZZ+FE=A=1-H 0.93 60,000 - - (60,000) -
31 March 2008 * “EE\FZF=F-H 0.45 120,000 - - - 120,000
31 March 2009 * “EENFZR=T-H 0.11 120,000 - - - 120,000
31 March 2010 * “Z-ZF=Zf=+-A 0.03 60,000 - - - 60,000
29 October 2010 * ZE-ZF+A=+NA 0.06 520,000 - - - 520,000
31 March 2011 * “Z——FzZf=1-H 0.04 60,000 - - - 60,000
31 March 2012 * “E-—#=-f=1+-H 0.12 60,000 - . - 60,000
31 March 2013 # —E-Z5=ZR=1-H 0.18 60,000 - - - 60,000
1 July 2013 # “Z-Z#+A—H 0.21 580,000 - - - 580,000
31 March 2014 # “Z-NFE=A=1—H 0.16 60,000 - - - 60,000
31 March 2015 # “Z-1F=R=1-H 0.17 60,000 - - - 60,000
1 July 2015 # “T-RFtA-AH 0.17 25,000 - - - 25,000
31 March 2016 # “Z-RFZA=1-H 0.24 145,000 - - - 145,000
10 August 2016 # “E-RFENATH 0.32 - 100,000 - - 100,000
1,972,000 100,000 (36,000) (66,000) 1,970,000
Exercisable at end of the WNERA T
year 1,870,000
Weighted average exercise MmEFHTREZET)
price (US$) 0.19 0.32 (0.33) (0.88) 0.17
Holders of the share options BRESEADTOT
are analysed as follows:
Directors £ 740,000 - - (60,000) 680,000
Employees EE 1,232,000 100,000 (36,000) (6,000) 1,290,000
1,972,000 100,000 (36,000) (66,000) 1,970,000
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38.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONT'D)

Share option scheme of The Singing Machine
Company, Inc. (“SMC”), a 51.26% (2017: 51.34%)
owned subsidiary of the Company (CONT'D)

The above options were granted for an exercise period of
nine years from the date on which the options are vested.

The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted is measured by reference to the fair value
of share options granted. The estimate of the fair value
of the services received is measured based on the Black-
Scholes pricing model.

* The options were granted under the SMC Scheme.

# The options were approved to be granted by the board
of directors of SMC and were not granted under the SMC
Scheme.

Fair value of share options and assumptions:

38.

BRETE(E)
KAEFEHE51.26%(=ZF—tF :51.34%)
# 2 i B 2 AThe Singing Machine
Company, Inc. ([SMC]) Z 8 B% # 5t &
(%)

A EERERBREREB A BENLFART
{5 e

SRS AR5 T % B 2 A BT 2 E M
EhBEE s 2 FEE - FREREZA
FENEROR - FENEEEAE -

* SMCEHBITR TP 2 BB AR #E -

# SMCEERILAEFFREZERERER
SMCFH BB T ARITH ©

Bz A FERKRR

10/8/2016 3/5/2017 1/4/2017 30/6/2017
—E-REF —E—+tF —E—+tF —E—+1F
Grant date BB NB+H EHA=H mA—H ~B=+H
Fair value at RetERHZAFE 0.36 0.42 0.42 0.35
measurement date (Z%7T)
(US$)
Share price (US$) A& (E7T) 0.44 0.57 0.57 0.52
Exercise price (US$) TEE(ERL) 0.32 0.47 0.47 0.55
Expected volatility e 144.98% 119.06% 121.79% 112.26%
Expected option life TE T RS AR AE BARR (47 ) 3 3 3 3
(years)
Expected dividend yield JEHIfR & =& 0% 0% 0% 0%
Risk-free interest rate &R F= 0.55% 1.10% 1.08% 1.24%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the SMC’s share price over the previous
one year. The expected life used in the model has been
adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for the
effects of non transferability, exercise restrictions and
behavioural considerations. Changes in the subjective
input assumptions could materially affect the fair value
estimate.
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38.

39.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONT'D)

Share option scheme of The Singing Machine
Company, Inc. (“SMC”), a 51.26% (2017: 51.34%)
owned subsidiary of the Company (CONT'D)

The Group recognised total expense of HK$1,013,000
(2017: HK$419,000) for the year in relation to share
options granted by SMC.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 25 September 2017, the Group acquired the entire
equity interest in NERBFHEHRZEERAF (“Benxi
Tongsheng”) from an independent third party at a
cash consideration of RMB20,050,000 (equivalent to
HK$23,570,000). Benxi Tongsheng is currently engaged
in properties development in the PRC. The transaction
has been accounted for using the acquisition method.
The acquisition is part of the on-going expansion strategy
of the Group with the aim of broadening its source of

revenue.

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
acquired as at its date of acquisition is as follows:

38.

39.

BRESTE(E)

X DA FAE126%(=ZF — £ F:
51.34%) ¥ % 2 Kt B 2 ®The Singing
Machine Company, Inc. ([SMC]) Z &%
RELTEI(E)

REBREFEANHRSMCIEH 2 BT HEFER
Bl X 4858 41,013,000 0 ( T —+ 4 ¢
419,000/ 7T) °

WEEHE AR
R-_E—tFNA-_+HHE AEHEA—Z
BUE=FRBERNERBREHEREBRA
A([AEREDOH2IRE  BeREA
A R #20,050,0007T ( 48 & 723,570,000
BL) c RERBENNPEEESMER
o B FERBEBEHEAR - WES
BEEASERRERRE, — EEHREH
WA SRR ©

RUEE B HFTKEB RIS EERBENAR
[ERCRNE

Benxi Tongsheng

Z [E] B

Net assets acquired: B EEFME - HK$'000

FET

Prepayments TERT IR 70,775

Bank balances and cash RITHBRES 71

Creditors and accrued charges FEERIE K BT &E A (47,276)

23,570

Consideration transferred, satisfied by cash LAIR& X a2 EEKE 23,570
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WEEEAMIRS R F5E -

Cash consideration paid 2NRERE (23,570)

Bank balances and cash acquired BUERITEB LIRS 71

(23,499)
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39.

40.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONT'D)

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the acquisition
of Benxi Tongsheng has no contribution to the Group's

revenue or loss in the consolidated financial statements.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 April 2017,
total Group revenue for the year would have been
HK$518,038,000, and loss for the year would have
been HK$26,721,000. The proforma information is
for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an
indication of the revenue and results of operations of
the Group that actually would have been achieved had
the acquisition been completed on 1 April 2017, nor is
intended to be a projection of future results.

39.

WEHE AR (&)

BE_Z2—N\F=A=1+—B1IL5E kB
NERBRITABAEBLGEATHERER 2 W
REIBEMER -

HEBEER =T —tFMNA—HZER &
SEEFRUEIEEA518,038,0008 7T 0 M
FREIEEE A26,721,0008 7T - HEE
FHEMFRARSR  MBEEEN T —+F
MA—HZEK @ AOEHRRAEBERE
Bz e RIS EEE DRI ARKRE

=4
i o

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 40. EREE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBxT FET
Property, plant and equipment W - BEMEESFED
Contracted for but not provided in the BRELHLEPEHREREE
consolidated financial statements 780 -
Prepaid land lease payments BT HAENREELD
Contracted for but not provided in the BRELHLEPEHREREE
consolidated financial statements - 6,207
780 6,207
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41.

LEASE COMMITMENTS

Commitments under operating leases

As lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of rented
premises as follows:

41.

MAHEE
EEANEE
EREHBA

RB|ERR - AEBERBECAEMETAH
HEEBRNINZ RRFEHESAENT

2018 2017

—E-N\E T+ F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Within one year —F R 11,686 10,035
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_FEEFERTF

(BEERME) 15,393 20,294

Over five years fiEsp Rk 712 -

27,791 30,329

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by
the Group for its office and warehouses. Leases are
negotiated for terms ranging from one to five years (2017:
from one to five years) and rentals are fixed over the
lease terms.

REBONFTEASERERAERAERE
NzlE BNHRBER—ERFAIAFE
—T—t%F: —E0%F) HHRAEERE
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42,

—NF=ZA=1+—HIFE

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into the following related party

transactions.

(a)

As at 31 March 2017, Mr. Wang Jing, a director of
the Company, and his wife have provided personal
guarantees to a bank in respect of the Group's
borrowings as at 31 March 2017.

As at 31 March 2017, ultimate holding company of
the Company has provided corporate guarantee to
a bank in respect of the Group’s borrowings as at
31 March 2017.

Details of the remuneration of key management
personnel, who are the directors, during the year
are set out in note 13. Key management personnel
are deemed to be the members of the Board of
Directors of the Company which has responsibility
for planning, directing and controlling the activities
of the Group.
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43. CHANGES IN LIABILITIES ARISING 43. BEETHELENEEEE
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The following table shows the Group’s changes in TRETAFEASBRETHELENARE
liabilities arising from financing activities during the year: &

Total liabilities
Convertible from financing

Borrowings bonds activities
RMETHEEN
BE ARBRES BER%E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET
At 1 April 2017 R-E—+FmA—H 99,500 72,174 171,674
Change in cash flows ReREEH 3,302 (1,297) 2,005
Non-cash changes IR
— Interest expenses on —BmREFFEMAX
convertible bonds - 4,123 4,123
— Disposal of loan under —HENBRARIZERLE
disposal of subsidiary (105,588) - (105,588)
— Conversion of convertible —#E#A[IAAREH
bonds - (75,000) (75,000)
- Exchange difference —[E =58 7.686 - 7,686
At 31 March 2018 RZE—N\F=ZA=+—H 4,900 - 4,900
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44,
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 44,

EKRARAR=ZA=+—B28#%

OF THE COMPANY AS AT 31 MARCH AR R/
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—LF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSET FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE RERE 2,250 3,521
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Deposits and prepayments e RIENFIE 3,319 3,317
Amounts due from subsidiaries N NETE S 347,084 343,425
Amount due from a director JERE EIA 63 -
Amount due from fellow subsidiary FEU— B[R Z B8 A B 30IA - 852
Amount due from related company JE s B8 & R B R IE 58,031 58,031
Cash and cash equivalents HeEkReEED 764 716
409,261 406,341
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Accrued charges EsrEA 2,964 1,465
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE AR /B A B FUA - 59
Amount due to a director JEE B IR - 140
Amounts due to related companies JESHRAE N R R 1,588 1,587
Amount due to immediate holding JE EEZER A RIFIA
company 23,669 5,898
Convertible bonds AR ES - 72,174
28,221 81,323
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 381,040 325,018
NET ASSETS EEFE 383,290 328,539
EQUITY &
Issued capital EEITRA 39,768 36,507
Reserves ] 343,522 292,032
TOTAL EQUITY B 383,290 328,539
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44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 44. AAFR=A=+—HB 28K
OF THE COMPANY AS AT 31 MARCH AR IR T (E
(CONT’D)
The amounts of the Company's reserves and the AAREBEZT—\F=ZA=+—HLFE
movements therein for the year ended 31 March 2018 are ZREBEBCHEREEYHFELNAT
as follows:
Convertible Capital
Share bonds redemption Contributed Accumulated
premium reserve reserve surplus losses Total
THR Ex
R EE BAfE EOfE E4RH ZitER @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn
At 1 April 2016 W=E-"ENA-H 252,315 61,365 577,204 99,172 (680,695) 309,361
Loss and other comprehensive FREERENZERY
expense for the year - - - - (17,329 (17.329)
At 31 March 2017 and 1 April 2017 R=Z—+%=F=1—H
kZE-+t%#NA-H 252,315 61,365 577,204 99,172 (698,024) 292,032
Loss and other comprehensive FEFBREMZERY
expense for the year - - - - (20,249) (20,249)
Issue of shares upon conversion of ~ BT EHEHTHRN
convertible bonds 133,104 (61,365) - - - 71,739
At 31 March 2018 RZE-N\F=ZA=1+-AH 385,419 - 577,204 99,172 (718,273) 343,522
45. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL 45, BT ZHtE

STATEMENTS

These consolidated financial statements were approved

and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29

June 2018.

ZEGAMBHRENR _—ZE-N\FRA-TI
BHESERIAERTETE -
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
FFEHBEHRE

Year ended 31 March
HE=ZA=+—RHLEE

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
ZTET—OF ZFT—RF ZT—RF ZT—tF ZE-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FAET FAT FAET FET
RESULTS *E
Revenue Wz 366,953 381,863 425,523 462,025 518,038
Loss before taxation from HELEEBL 2
continuing operations P A S 18 (199,046) (245,868)  (14,495)  (36,987)  (24,113)
Taxation iR 9,682 (1,263) (1,504) (10,100) 115
Profit/(loss) for the year from FEREKIFELEBE Y
discontinued operation WAL (EE) - - - 8,081 (2,723)
Loss for the year FEEE (189,364) (247,131)  (15,999)  (39,006)  (26,721)
Attributable to: T AT EIERIE -
Owners of the Company KARER A (193,036) (246,934)  (22,243)  (46,055)  (27,251)
Non-controlling interests FEE AR RS 3,672 197 6,244 7,049 530
(189,364) (246,737) (15,999) (39,006) (26,721)
At 31 March
R=A=+—8
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
—E-NF ZE-RF ZE—RF ZT—tF ZE-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET FET FET THET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Total assets BEE 530,375 280,040 829,444 679,829 508,867
Total liabilities FEN=R 192,249 182,740 450,567 364,965 93,422
338,126 97,300 378,877 314,864 415,445
Attributable to owners NATEB AFEAS
of the Company RIH 321,716 82,044 357,136 285,344 384,330
Non-controlling interests JEE AL REZS 16,410 15,256 21,741 29,520 31,115
338,126 97,300 378,877 314,864 415,445
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